
Regular Council Meeting 
Town of Sundre Municipal Council Chambers 

April 25, 2022 
6:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order
Moment of Reflection

2. Public Hearing:
3. Agenda – Amendments and Adoption

3.1 April 25, 2022 Regular Council Meeting 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes
4.1 April 11, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Pg. 

5. Delegation:
5.1 Sundre Strong Pg. 
5.2 Price Waterhouse Cooper, LLP Pg. 

6. Closed Meeting:
6.1 Management Letter Discussion – FOIPP Act Section 24(1)(b) 

7. Return to Open Meeting
7.1 RFD 2021 Audited Financial Statements Pg. 

Approval of 2021 Audited Financial Statements, Auditor’s Report, and Pg. 
Financial Information Return  

8. New Business
8.1 RFD Appointment of Assessor 
8.2 RFD Proclamation June 19th- The Longest Day of SMILES Pg. 
8.3 RFD Proclamation May 30 – June 3, RHPAP Pg. 

9. Administration
9.1 RFD March Departmental Reports Pg. 

10. Municipal Area Partnership (MAP): None

11. Council Committee Reports
11.1 Mayor Warnock Pg. 
11.2 Councillor Marr Pg. 
11.3 Councillor Petersen Pg. 
11.4 Councillor Isaac Pg. 
11.5 Councillor Anderson Pg. 

12. Council Invitations / Correspondence: None

13. Closed Meeting
13.1 Advice from Officials, FOIPP Act Section 24

14. Adjournment
Personal information heard in this meeting is being collected under the authority of Section 33 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act. Public meeting of the Town of Sundre, including presentations made by speakers, are recorded in Minutes and posted on the Town of Sundre 
website. If you have any questions about the collection of information, please contact the FOIP Coordinator at 403-638-3551 or email: 
townmail@sundre.com
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Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
Town of Sundre 

Municipal Council Chambers 
April 11, 2022 

_____ 

_____ 
Initials 

The closed meeting of Council of the Municipality of Sundre was held in the Municipal Council Chambers on 
Monday, April 11, 2022, commencing at 6:00 p.m. 

IN ATTENDANCE: Mayor Richard Warnock 
Councillor Connie Anderson 
Councillor Owen Petersen 
Councillor Todd Dalke 
Councillor Jaime Marr 
Councillor Chris Vardas 
Councillor Paul Isaac 

STAFF: Chief Administrative Officer, Linda Nelson 
Director of Corporate Services, Chris Albert  
Director of Infrastructure, Justin Caslor 
Senior Planner, Benazir Thaha Valencia 
Administrative Support, Betty Ann Fountain 

PUBLIC: There were 3 members of the public in attendance (Mr. Bruce Kendall, Mr. Robert Wolfe 
and Mr. Steve Bouchet) and 1 member of the Press. 

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m., with a moment of reflection on the business 
of the evening.  

PUBLIC HEARING: None 

AGENDA – AMENDMENTS AND ADOPTION: 

Res. 106-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the agenda be approved as presented or amended as 
follows: 

1. Remove Item 5 Delegation – Sundre Strong unable to attend meeting.

CARRIED 

ADOPTION OF THE PREVIOUS MINUTES : 

Res. 107-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of Council 
held on March 28, 2022, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 

DELEGATION: None 

BYLAWS/POLICIES: 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw 2022-04 

Res. 108-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council give first reading to Bylaw 
2022-04 the 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw. 

CARRIED 

4.1
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Page 2 of 3 
Regular Council Minutes – March 28, 2022 

Res. 109-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre Council give second reading to 
Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw. 

CARRIED 

Res. 110-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council give unanimous consent for 
Third and Final Reading to Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw. 

CARRIED 

Res. 111-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council give third and final reading 
to Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw. 

CARRIED 

OLD BUSINESS: None 

NEW BUSINESS: APWA Proclamation 

Res. 112-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre Council proclaim the week of 
May 12 to 21, 2022 as “National Public Works Week” in Sundre. 

CARRIED 
“Aggie Days” – Proclamation “Thank a Farmer” 

Res. 113-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre Council accept the invitation to 
participate in the pancake breakfast for Aggie Days on May 14, 2022, and in gratitude 
proclaim May 14, 2022, as “Thank a Farmer Day” in the Town of Sundre. 

CARRIED 

Safety Codes Council Internal Review – Fire Discipline 
Res. 114-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council accept the letter from the 

Safety Codes Council regarding the 2021 Annual Internal Review under the Fire Discipline 
as information. 

CARRIED 

ADMINISTRATION: Provincial U13 Hockey Tournament 

Res. 115-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council accept the verbal report 
delivered by the Chief Administrative Officer regarding the Provincial U13 Hockey 
Tournament held at the Sundre Arena, March 31 to April 3, 2022, as information. 

CARRIED 
MUNICIPAL AREA PARTNERSHIP:  None 

COUNCIL REPORTS: None 

COUNCIL INVITATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE: 

Letter from Town of Fox Creek – Letter to Alberta Utilities 

116-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council accept the letter from the 
Town of Fox Creek as information and that Administration prepare a letter in support of 
the Town of Fox Creek to the Alberta Utilities Commission. 

 CARRIED 
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Page 3 of 3 
Regular Council Minutes – March 28, 2022 

Mayor Warnock excused all public members and advised that they are welcome to return to the Regular Council 
meeting at the conclusion of the closed meeting. 

Mayor Warnock called a recess at 6:41 p.m. 

The following were in attendance for the closed meeting session: 
Staff: Linda Nelson, CAO 

CLOSED MEETING Topic of Closed Meeting 

13.1 Advice from Officials, FOIPP Act Section 24. 

Res. 117-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Isaac that Council go into closed meeting at 6:50 p.m. 
CARRIED 

Res. 118-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Anderson that Council return to an open meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
CARRIED 

ADJOURNMENT 
119-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Dalke being that the agenda matters have been concluded the 

meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 

CARRIED 

_____ 

_____ 
Initials 

These Minutes approved this 25th Day of April 2022. 

Mayor, Richard Warnock 

Chief Administrative Officer, Linda Nelson 
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REPORT TO COUNCIL 

COUNCIL DATE April 25, 2022 

SUBJECT  2021 Audit Report, the 2021 Audited Financial 
Statements and the 2021 Financial Information Report 
(FIR) 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT Corporate Services 

AGENDA ITEM   7.1 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL:  
The following sections of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statures of Alberta 2000, 
Chapter M-26 sets out the requirements of the Town of Sundre regarding financial statements 
and the financial information report. 

Section 276(1) states “Each municipality must prepare annual financial statements of the 
municipality for the immediate preceding year…” 

Section 276(3) states “Each municipality must make its financial statements, or a summary of 
them, and the auditor’s report of the financial statements available to the public in the manner 
the council considers appropriate by May 1 of the year following the year for which the 
financial statements have been prepared.” 

Section 277(1) states “Each municipality must prepare a financial information return respecting 
the financial affairs of the municipality for the immediate preceding calendar year.” 

Section 278 requires “Each municipality must submit its financial return and the auditor’s 
report on the financial information return, and its financial statements and the auditor’s report 
on the financial statements to the Minister by May 1 of the year following the year for which 
the financial information return, and statements have been prepared.” 

Section 280(1) requires “Each council must appoint one or more auditors for the municipality.” 

Section 281(1) requires “The auditor for the municipality must report to the council on the 
annual financial statements and financial information return of the municipality.” 

Council appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) to be the Town of Sundre auditors for 
the 2021 financial statements and financial information return.  In consultation with 
administration, PwC developed a schedule that included a week in December and two weeks in 
March for the required fieldwork.  On-going health restrictions prevented PwC from 

a
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undertaking the on-site fieldwork and were once again required to conduct the audit utilizing 
digital means, which can create some challenges that were overcome with work on all sides. 

Council is receiving the auditor’s report for both the financial statements and financial 
information return and PwC will present their findings to Council.  Their management report 
will be presented to Council during the in-camera session. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP representatives will be present to make a public presentation of 
the 2021 audited financial statements and their auditor’s report. 

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: 
This supports Council’s strategic priorities of improved communication and transparency with 
our stakeholders, as well as financial stability. 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Administration recommends that Council approve the 2021 auditor’s report, 2021 audited 
financial statements and the 2021 financial information return. 

COSTS/SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:   
2021 Auditor’s Reports 
Draft 2021 Financial Statements 
Draft 2021 Financial Information Return 
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TOWN OF SUNDRE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Approved by Council: 

________________________________ 
Richard Warnock, Mayor 

_________________________________ 
Chris Albert, CPA, CGA 
Director of Corporate Services 
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2021 2020

$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS

 Cash and temporary investments (Note 4) 9,501,738$  8,896,006$    

 Receivables (Note 5)
  Taxes and grants in place of taxes 700,600 522,095

      Trade and other receivables 1,108,343 1,033,898

 Investments (Note 6) 27,754 27,754

11,338,435$  10,479,753$    

LIABILITIES

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 960,884$  662,894$    

 Deposit liabilities 261,610 113,982
 Deferred revenue (Note 7) 821,287 1,408,678

 Long-term debt (Note 8) 5,371,629 5,836,620

7,415,410$  8,022,174$    

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 3,923,025$  2,457,579$    

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

 Tangible capital assets (Note 11) 42,830,159$  43,933,185$    

 Inventory for consumption 47,821 80,842

 Prepaid Expense 45,508 40,914

42,923,488$  44,054,941$    

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 13) 46,846,513$ 46,512,520$   

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16 and 17)

Approved on behalf of Council by:

Town of Sundre

Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2021

1
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Budget 2021 2020
$ $ $

REVENUE

  Net municipal taxes (Schedule 3) 3,509,312$   3,615,861$    3,647,933$   
  User fees and sales of goods 3,925,993 4,387,996 3,964,062

  Government transfers for operating (Schedule 4) 810,343 1,226,218 1,140,330
  Investment Income 16,000 53,581 72,381
  Fines, penalties and cost of taxes 117,700 153,629 92,005

  Licenses and permits 87,300 117,861 75,940
  Rentals 108,508 81,714 64,737
  Other 209,200 245,834 305,513

Total Revenue 8,784,356$   9,882,694$    9,362,901$   

EXPENSES

  Legislative 308,926$    351,836$     305,949$    
  Administration 742,761 706,182 717,690
  Protective services 861,627 858,957 679,215
  Roads, streets, walks, lighting 1,734,899 1,459,501 1,355,388

  Water supply and distribution 1,281,733 1,120,069 1,042,040
  Wastewater treatment and disposal 839,754 883,754 795,032
  Waste management 247,224 263,283 268,929
  Gas distribution 1,230,391 1,564,885 1,170,323

  Family and community support 35,520 166,017 165,785
  Land use planning, zoning and development 701,760 641,660 632,200
  Parks and recreation 1,817,527 1,685,038 1,575,829

  Culture 130,001 329,952 321,834

Total Expenses 9,932,123$   10,031,134$    9,030,214$   

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 

- BEFORE OTHER (1,147,767)$   (148,440)$    332,687$    

OTHER

  Contributed Assets - - 316,600
  Government Transfers for capital (Schedule 4) - 482,433 534,197

-$ 482,433$    850,797$    

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (1,147,767)$   333,993$    1,183,484$   

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 46,512,520$   46,512,520$   45,329,036$    

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR (Note 13) 45,364,753$  46,846,513$   46,512,520$   

Town of Sundre

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

As at December 31, 2021
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2021
Budget 2021 2020

$ $ $

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (1,147,767)$    333,993$   1,183,484$   

Change in tangible capital assets

 Acquisition of tangible capital assets (121,200) (877,176) (2,668,445)
 Contributed Tangible capital assets - - (316,600)
 Loss (Gain) on sale of tangible capital assets - 491 (2,746)
 Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,196,000 1,979,103 1,916,761
 Trade-in value on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 10,000
 Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 608 -

2,074,800$  1,103,026$ (1,061,030)$  

Change in non-financial assets

 Use (Acquisition) of inventories for consumption - 33,021 -
 (Acquisition) Use of prepaid assets - (4,594) (15,107)

- 28,427 (15,107)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 927,033$  1,465,446$ 107,347$ 

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,457,579$  2,457,579$ 2,350,232$ 

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3,384,612$  3,923,025$ 2,457,579$ 

Town of Sundre

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

As at December 31, 2021
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2021 2020
$ $

NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED TO 

THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES:

OPERATING
 Excess of revenues over expenses 333,993$    1,183,484$    

Non-cash items included in excess (shortfall) of revenue over expenses
 Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,979,103 1,916,761
 Tangible capital assets received as contributions - (316,600)
 Loss / (Gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets 491 (2,746)
 Trade-in value on disposal of tangible capital assets - 10,000

Non-cash charges to operations (net change)
 (Increase) Decrease in taxes and grants in place of taxes (178,505) (181,802)
 (Increase) Decrease in trade and other receivables (74,445) (239,993)
 Decrease (Increase) in inventory for consumption 33,021 -
 (Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses (4,594) (15,107)
 Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liablities 297,990 (332,416)
 Increase (Decrease) in deposit liabilities 147,628 52,279
 (Decrease) Increase in deferred revenue (587,391) 214,154

Total cash provided by operations 1,947,291$    2,288,014$    

CAPITAL
 Acquisition of tangible capital assets (877,176) (2,668,445)

   Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 608 -
Cash applied to capital transactions (876,568)$    (2,668,445)$    

INVESTING
      (Increase) Decrease in investments - (54)

Cash provided by investing transactions -$   (54)$    

FINANCING
 Long-term debt repaid (464,991) (473,781)

   Long-term debt acquired - -
Cash provided by financing transactions (464,991)$    (473,781)$    

CHANGE IN CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS DURING THE YEAR 605,732$    (854,266)$    

CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,896,006$    9,750,272$    

CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS, END OF YEAR 9,501,738$   8,896,006$   

Cash and temporary investments is made up of:

 Cash and temporary investments (Note 4) 8,716,289$    7,998,604$    
 Designated portion of cash (Note 4) 785,449 897,402

9,501,738$   8,896,006$   

Town of Sundre

Statement of Cash Flows

As at December 31, 2021
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 Unrestricted 

Surplus 

Restricted 

Surplus

Equity in 

Tangible Capital 

Assets 2021 2020

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,338,004$     3,077,951$   38,096,565$    46,512,520$     45,329,036$     

Excess of revenues over expenses 333,993 - - 333,993 1,183,484

Unrestricted funds designated for future use (2,304,110) 2,304,110 - - -

Restricted funds used for operations 49,700 (49,700) - - -

Restricted funds re-designated as Unrestricted - - - - -

Restricted funds used for tangible capital assets - (154,909) 154,909 - -

Current year funds used for tangible capital assets (722,267) - 722,267 - -

Contributed tangible capital assets - - - - -

Disposal of tangible capital assets 1,099 - (1,099) - -

Annual amortization expense 1,979,103 - (1,979,103) - -

Long term debt acquired - - - - -

Long term debt repaid (464,991) - 464,991 - -

Change in accumulated surplus (1,127,473)$     2,099,501$   (638,035)$   333,993$    1,183,484$        

BALANCE, END OF YEAR 4,210,531$       5,177,452$   37,458,530$    46,846,513$     46,512,520$     

Town of Sundre

Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus

As at December 31, 2021

Schedule 1
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Buildings

Engineered 

Structures Land

Land 

Improvements

Machinery & 

Equipment Vehicles 2021 2020

COSTS:

Balance, beginning of year 15,498,704$     34,654,650$    9,770,110$     2,225,217$    3,692,271$    1,727,604$     67,568,556$    64,612,700$    

  Acquisition of tangible capital assets 16,041 469,342 - 148,454 182,182 40,757 856,776 4,276,013
  Work-in-progress - 20,400 - - - - 20,400 (1,290,968)
  Disposal of tangible capital assets - - - - - (10,995) (10,995) (29,189)

Balance, end of year 15,514,745$     35,144,392$    9,770,110$     2,373,671$    3,874,453$    1,757,366$     68,434,737$    67,568,556$    

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION:

Balance, beginning of year 6,476,052$     13,342,302$    -$  937,680$    1,942,245$    937,092$     23,635,371$    21,740,545$    

  Annual Amortization 464,817 1,088,362 - 133,946 214,374 77,604 1,979,103 1,916,761
  Accumulated amortization on disposals - - - - - (9,896) (9,896) (21,935)

Balance, end of year 6,940,869$     14,430,664$    -$  1,071,626$       2,156,619$   1,004,800$     25,604,578$    23,635,371$    

2021 NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 8,573,876$     20,713,728$    9,770,110$     1,302,045$    1,717,834$    752,566$     42,830,159$    43,933,185$    

2020 NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 9,022,652$     21,312,348$    9,770,110$     1,287,537$    1,750,026$    790,512$     43,933,185$    

TOWN OF SUNDRE

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Schedule 2
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Budget 2021 2020
$ $ $

TAXATION

  Real property taxes 3,274,993$       4,544,642$      4,558,199$      
  Linear property taxes 120,026 212,907 206,254
  Grants in Lieu of Taxes 34,293 - -
  Special assessments and local improvement taxes 80,000 102,035 102,052

3,509,312$       4,859,584$      4,866,505$      

REQUISTIONS

  Alberta School Foundation Fund - 1,098,362 1,073,455
  Mountain View Senior's Housing - 145,361 145,117
  Designated Industrial Properties - - -

-$  1,243,723$      1,218,572$      

NET MUNICIPAL TAXES 3,509,312$       3,615,861$      3,647,933$      

Town of Sundre

Schedule of Property and Other Taxes

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Schedule 3
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Budget 2021 2020
$ $ $

TRANSFERS FOR OPERATING

FEDERAL TRANSFERS
   Canada Summer Jobs -$ 5,885$    -$   

PROVINCIAL TRANSFERS
  Family & Community Services - 71,478 71,478
  Municipal Sustainability Initiative - Operating 30,000 42,000 44,008
  Municipal Operating Support Transfer - 87,619 -
  Municipal Stimulus Program - 34,455 -
  River Bank Stabilization - - -
  Flood Mitigation - - -
  Other - 94,711 157,098

30,000$          330,263$    272,584$        

LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS
  Shared-cost agreements and grants 780,343 890,070 867,746

Total Operating 810,343$        1,226,218$  1,140,330$     

TRANSFERS FOR CAPITAL

FEDERAL TRANSFERS
  Federal Gas Tax Rebate - 36,818 281,970

PROVINCIAL TRANSFERS
  Municipal Sustainability Initiative - Capital - 69,999 252,227
  Municipal Operating Support Transfer - 98,477 -
  Municipal Stimulus Program - 277,139 -

LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS
  Shared-cost agreements - - -

Total Capital -$ 482,433$   534,197$        

TOTAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS 810,343$        1,708,651$  1,674,527$     

Town of Sundre

Schedule of Government Transfers

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Schedule 4
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Budget 2021 2020

$ $ $

EXPENSES BY OBJECT

 Salaries, wages and benefits 3,204,824$    3,226,606$    3,030,771$    
 Contracted and general services 788,867 744,537 840,157

 Materials, goods, utilities and other 2,983,736 3,077,111 2,257,440

 Transfers to local organizations 553,696 803,333 764,376

 Interest on long-term debt 205,000 200,444 220,709

 Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,196,000 1,979,103 1,916,761

9,932,123$   10,031,134$   9,030,214$   

Town of Sundre

Schedule of Expenses by Object

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Schedule 5
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General Protective Transportation Planning & Recreation Utility Total

Government Services Services Development & Culture Services $

REVENUE

  Net Municipal Taxes 3,615,861$      -$ -$  -$  -$ -$ 3,615,861$       
  Government transfers 167,497 171,261 352,508 89,253 928,132 - 1,708,651

  User fees and sales of goods 140,353 183,254 93,754 127,788 324,461 3,871,590 4,741,200

  Investment income 53,581 - - - - - 53,581

  Other revenues 228,404 4,265 - - 13,165 - 245,834

4,205,696$      358,780$       446,262$     217,041$       1,265,758$      3,871,590$      10,365,127$     

EXPENSES

  Contract & general services 204,984$    119,385$       39,580$       29,486$    89,017$           262,085$    744,537$       

  Salaries & wages 471,019 378,339 363,578 409,630 744,018 860,022 3,226,606

  Goods & supplies 258,749 216,075 345,057 191,730 351,488 1,714,012 3,077,111

  Transfers to local organizations - 26,432 - 10,814 698,599 67,488 803,333

  Long-term debt interest 14,606 - 129,893 - 1,132 54,813 200,444

  Other expenses - - - - - - -

949,358$    740,231$       878,108$     641,660$       1,884,254$      2,958,420$      8,052,031$       

NET REVENUE, BEFORE AMORTIZATION 3,256,338$      (381,451)$     (431,846)$    (424,619)$     (618,496)$       913,170$    2,313,096$       

   Amortization expense (108,658) (118,726) (581,394) - (296,755) (873,570) (1,979,103)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 3,147,680$     (500,177)$    (1,013,240)$   (424,619)$    (915,251)$      39,600$     333,993$      

Town of Sundre

Schedule of Segmented Disclosure

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Schedule 6
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Town of Sundre 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

11

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Sundre (the “Town”) are the representations of management
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments established by
the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Town of Sundre are as follows:

a) Reporting Entity
The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures, changes in fund
balances and changes in financial position of the reporting entity that comprises all the organizations
that are accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Council and
are controlled by the municipality.

The schedule of taxes levied also includes requisitions for education and seniors’ lodges that are not
part of the municipal reporting entity.  Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances
are eliminated.

b) Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes the effect of transactions and events in the period in which the transactions and
events occur, regardless of whether there has been a receipt or payment of cash or its equivalent.

Revenues are recognized as they are earned and measurable.  Funds from external parties and earnings
thereon that are restricted by agreement or legislation are accounted for as deferred revenue until used
for the purpose specified.

Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services
and/or legal obligation to pay.

c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
for local governments established by PSAB requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditure
during the period.  Where measurement uncertainty exists, the financial statements have been prepared
within reasonable limits of materiality.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

d) Government Transfers
Government transfers are the transfers of assets from senior levels of government that are not the
result of an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct
financial return.  Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the
period that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred, providing the transfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met by the municipality, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be
determined.

70



Town of Sundre 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

12

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e) Deferred Revenue
Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties pursuant to
legislation, regulation or agreement and is restricted and may only be used in the conduct of certain
programs, in the completion of specific work or for the purchase of tangible capital assets.  In addition,
certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be performed.
Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are incurred, services performed or the
tangible capital assets are acquired.

f) Taxes and Grants in place of Taxes Receivable
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable consist of current and non-current property tax levies,
which remain outstanding at December 31.

g) Cash and Temporary Investments
Cash is comprised of cash, temporary investments and designated cash deposited with financial
institutions.  Temporary investments are defined as short-term deposits with original maturities of
three months or less and that can be converted to cash as required. Designated cash relates to
conditional grants received.

h) Investments
Investments are recorded at amortized cost.  When there is a loss in value that is other than a
temporary decline, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss.

i) Prepaid Local Improvement Charges
Construction and borrowing costs associated with local improvement projects are recovered through
annual special assessments during the period of the related borrowings.  These levies are collectable
from property owners for work performed by the municipality.

Where a taxpayer has elected to prepay the outstanding local improvement charges, such amounts are
recorded as deferred revenue.  Deferred revenue is amortized to revenue on a straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the related borrowings.

In the event that the prepaid amounts are applied against the related borrowings, the deferred revenue
is amortized to revenue by an amount equal to the debt repayment.

j) Non-Financial Assets
Non-Financial Assets are assets that are not available to discharge existing liabilities but held for use
in Town operations.  Such assets have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not
intended for sale in the normal course of Town operations.  The change in non-financial assets during
the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change in Net Financial
Assets for the year.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life in accordance
with Board Policy B-019 – Tangible Capital Assets as follows:

YEARS
Land Improvements 15 - 25 
Buildings 25 - 30 
Engineered Structures 

Water System 30 - 40 
Waste Water System 30 - 75 
Gas System 30 - 50 
Other engineered structures  5 - 40 

Machinery & Equipment  3 – 40 
Vehicles  10 - 25 

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of 
disposal.  Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for 
productive use.  Government contributions for the acquisition of capital assets are recorded 
as capital revenue and do not reduce the related capital asset costs. 

l) Contributions of Tangible Capital Assets
Contributed tangible capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of receipt and are
recorded as revenue at the date of receipt.

m) Inventories
Inventories of materials and supplies are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value
with cost determined by the weighted average cost method.

n) Restricted Surpluses for Future Expenditures
Restricted Surpluses are established at the discretion of Council to set aside funds for
future operating and capital expenditures.  Transfers to and/or from restricted surplus
accounts are reflected in accumulated surplus.

o) Leases
Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  Leases that transfer substantially all of
the benefit and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases.
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are
charged to expenses as incurred.

p) Contaminated Sites
The Town of Sundre reviews all contaminated sites for possible liabilities associated with
the remediation of such sites.  Management has assessed such sites and has determined
there is no liability regarding the remediation of these sites.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

q) Related Party Transactions
Disclosure of information about related party transactions and the relationship underlying
them is required when they have occurred at a value different from that which would have
been arrived at if the parties were unrelated, and when the transactions have, or could have,
a material financial effect on the financial statements.  Related parties and transactions are
reviewed annually.

2. COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Management has assessed the financial impact of COVID-19 at December 31, 2021, including the impact of
additional lost facility operating revenue, the collectability of receivables, and the impact on its cash flows
and borrowing agreements.  To date, the current economic challenges have resulted in moderate declines in
facility revenues due to closures, and a reduction of penalty revenue due to Council deferral initiatives.
Cash flows have remained acceptable throughout the pandemic to date and have had minimal impact.  The
Government of Alberta has provided funding through the Municipal Operating Support Transfer initiative,
which has been utilized to offset the additional costs associated with complying with provincial health
measures and compensate for reduced revenues (see Note 7).  While the Town is in a sound financial
position, it is possible the pandemic may continue to have a material long-term adverse effect on the future
operations and cash flows, including increased defaults or bankruptcies of property owners.

The situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact on the economy and the
financial effect on the organization is not known at this time.  The Town of Sundre will continue to monitor
the impacts of the pandemic on the community that it serves and its employees and continue to adjust to the
volatile situation.

3. FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) recently announced the following accounting pronouncements:

PSAB Section 3450, Financial Instruments
This accounting pronouncement establishes standards on how to account for and report all types of financial
instruments including derivatives. Financial instruments include primary instruments and derivative
instruments. It is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022, while early adoption is
encouraged the Town will not be adopting early. In addition, the Town will be required to assess Section
3041, Portfolio investments; Section 3050, Loans receivable; Section 3390, Contractual obligations; Section
3230, Long-term debt; Section 2500, Consolidation; and Section 3070, Investments in government business
enterprises.

PSAB Section 1201, Financial Statement Presentation
This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022, when sections PS
2601 and PS 3450 are adopted and establishes new general reporting principles and standards for
the disclosure of information in government financial statements.
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3. FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

PSAB Section 2601, Foreign Currency Translation
This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022 and establishes
standards on how to account for and report transactions that are denominated in foreign currency
in government financial statements.

PSAB Section 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations
This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022 and provides guidance
on accounting for asset retirement obligations.

PSAB Section 3160, Public Private Partnerships
This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and provides guidance
on recognition and measurement of public private partnerships as infrastructure assets and
liabilities.

PSAB Section 3400, Revenue
This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and provides greater
clarity on the difference between exchange and non-exchange transactions.

Management is assessing the impact of the adoption of these standards which is not known or reasonably
estimable at this time.

4. CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

2021 2020
$ $

Cash 7,850,624 7,141,461
Temporary Investments 865,665 857,143
Designated Cash 785,449 897,402

9,501,738 8,896,006

5. TAXES AND GRANTS IN PLACE OF TAXES RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
$ $

Current taxes and grants in place of taxes 700,600 522,095
Trade and other 1,108,343 1,033,898

1,808,943 1,555,993
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6. INVESTMENTS

2021 2020
$ $

Investment in Gas Alberta Inc.
Shares at cost 254 254
Debentures 27,500 27,500

27,754 27,754

The investment in Gas Alberta Inc. consists of shares of $254 and debenture of $27,500 that is 
non-interest bearing and is due when the Gas Alberta Inc. contract expires.  Expiry requires five 
years notice prior to service termination.  Shares are not publically traded therefore fair market 
value is not readily available. 

7. DEFERRED REVENUE

2021 2021 
Beginning Additions Utilizations End 

$ $ 

  Prepaid local improvement charges    23,366 - 23,366   - 
  Mountain View Senior’s Housing    21,814  24 - 21,838

 45,180  24   23,366 21,838 

Grants
     FRIAA FireSmart Program 36 1 - 37
     Travel Alberta - 89,253 89,253 -
     Fortis Community Naturalization - 1,200 - 1,200
     Municipal Operating Support Transfer 186,096 - 186,096 -
     Municipal Sustainability Int. - Operating 32,387 31,685 42,000 22,072
     Municipal Stimulus Program 280,000 44,394 311,594 12,800
     Canada Community Building Fund 

(formerly Federal Gas Tax Fund)
300,624 1,549 36,818 265,355 

     Municipal Sustainability Int. - Capital 564,355 3,629 69,999 497,985 
1,363,498 171,711 735,760 799,449

1,408,678 171,735 759,126 821,287
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7. DEFERRED REVENUE (continued)

Deferred revenue represents amounts received or receivable which will be recognized as revenue
in the period in which they are earned and corresponding expenditures are incurred.

The use of the Municipal Sustainability Initiative Grants and the Federal Gas Tax Grant is
restricted to eligible capital projects as approved by the Province, which are scheduled for
completion in the future.

Prepaid local improvement charges are being amortized to revenue at a rate of $23,366 per year
ending in 2021.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

2021 2020
$ $

Tax supported debentures 4,148,599 4,384,280
Special levies supported debentures - 112,243
Utility supported debentures 1,223,030 1,340,097

5,371,629 5,836,620

The current portion of long-term debt is $329,461 (2020 - $464,991). 

Principal and interest repayments are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total
$ $ $

2022 329,461 185,884 515,345
2023 341,894 173,451 515,345
2024 354,819 160,527 515,346
2025 368,255 147,091 515,346
2026 382,224 133,122 515,346
Thereafter 3,594,976 630,290 4,225,266

5,371,629 1,430,365 6,801,994

Debenture debt is repayable to the Alberta Capital Finance Authority bearing interest rates 
ranging from 2.46% to 5.24% per annum, before provincial subsidy and matures in periods 2022 
to 2039.  For qualifying debentures, the Province of Alberta rebates interest.  Debenture debt is 
issued on the credit and security of the Town of Sundre at large.   

Interest on long-term debt amounted to $200,444 (2020 - $220,709). 

The Town’s total cash payments for interest in 2021 were $202,582 (2020 - $220,648). 
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9. RESTRICTED SURPLUSES
Restricted Surpluses for operating and capital activities are as follows:

Beginning 
 of Year 

End 
 of Year 

$ $ 

Operating 
 General Corp. Stabilization 610,252 1,400,316
 Corp. Serv. Stabilization - 53,216
 Prot. Serv. Stabilization - 13,041
 Mun. Op. Stabilization - 35,904
 Development Stabilization - 30,584
 Comm. Serv. Stabilization - 75,411
 Fire (Operating) 103,029 119,318

713,281 1,727,790

Capital 
Municipal New Projects 1,185 53,780

 Municipal Life-cycling  685,193 754,458
 Utility Life-cycling 506,164 1,358,506
 Fire (Capital) 738,732 846,808
 Off-Site Levy - Water 314,065 315,812
 Municipal Reserve 63,960 64,316
 Sundre Golf Society 55,371 55,982

2,364,670 3,449,662

Total Restricted Surpluses 3,077,951 5,177,452

Capital Restricted Surpluses are based on a 10-year capital replacement plan that is approved by 
Council on an annual basis.   
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10. DEBT LIMITS

Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by
Alberta Regulation 255/2000 for the Town of Sundre be disclosed as follows:

2021 2020
$ $

Total debt limit 14,824,041 14,044,352
Total debt 5,371,629 5,836,620
Amount of debt limit unused 9,452,412 8,207,732

2021 2020
$ $

Debt servicing limit 2,470,673 2,340,725
Debt servicing 667,572 694,429
Amount of debt servicing limit unused 1,803,101 1,646,296

The debt limit is calculated at 1.5 times revenue of the municipality (as defined in Alberta 
Regulation 255/2000) and the debt service limit is calculated at 0.25 times such revenue.   

Incurring debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs.  
These thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities that 
could be at financial risk if further debt is acquired.  The calculation taken alone does not 
represent the financial stability of the municipality.  Rather, the financial statements must be 
interpreted as a whole.   

11. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Net Book Value
2021 2020

$ $
Land 9,770,110 9,770,110
Land Improvements 1,302,045 1,287,537
Buildings 8,573,876 9,022,652
Engineered Structures 20,713,728 21,312,348
Machinery, equipment and furnishings 1,717,834 1,750,026
Vehicles 752,566 790,512

42,830,159 43,933,185

There were contributed assets of nil in 2021 (2020 - $316,600); and the total contributed assets 
value is $1,348,257 (2020 - $1,348,257). 

78



Town of Sundre 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

20

12. EQUITY IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

2021 2020
$ $

Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule 2) 68,434,737 67,568,556
Accumulated Amortization (Schedule 2) (25,604,578) (23,635,371)
 Long-term Debt (Note 8) (5,371,629) (5,836,620)

37,458,530 38,096,565

13. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Accumulated surplus consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in tangible capital assets as
follows:

2021 2020
$ $

Equity in tangible capital assets (Note 12) 37,458,530 38,096,565
Unrestricted surplus (Schedule 1) 4,210,531 5,338,004
Restricted surplus

Operating Restricted Surplus (Note 9) 1,727,790 713,281
Capital Restricted Surplus (Note 9) 3,449,662 2,364,670

46,846,513 46,512,520

14. LOCAL AUTHORITIES PENSION PLAN

Employees of the town participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP), which is one of the plans
covered by the Alberta Public Sector Pension Plan Act.  The LAPP serves about 274,151 people and 420
employers.  It is financed by employer and employee contributions and by investment earnings of the LAPP
Fund.

The Town of Sundre is required to make current service contributions to the plan of 9.39% of the
pensionable earnings up to the Canada Pension Plan Year’s Maximum Pensionable Earnings and 13.84% for
the excess.  Employees of the Town are required to make current service contributions of 8.39% of
pensionable salary up to the year’s maximum pensionable salary and 12.84% on pensionable salary above
this amount.

Total current service contributions by the town to the LAPP in 2021 were $217,390 (2020 - $215,416).  Total
current service contributions by the employees of the town to the LAPP in 2021 were $196,363 (2020 -
$194,844).

At December 31, 2020 LAPP disclosed an actuarial surplus of $4.9 billion (2019 - $7.9 billion).
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15. SALARY AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE

Disclosure of salaries and benefits for municipal officials, the chief administrative officer and designated
officers are required by Alberta Regulation 313/2000 are as follows:

2021 
$

2020 
$

Salary1 Benefits & 
Allowances2 Total Total 

Mayor & Councilors: 

Mayor, Leslie 20,652 - 20,652 26,440
Mayor, Warnock 6,907 - 6,907 -
Councillor, Dalke 17,214 747 17,961 18,034
Councillor, Funke 13,346 573 13,919 18,779
Councillor, Isaac 15,807 671 16,478 15,908
Councillor, Preston 9,676 403 10,079 16,358
Councillor, Warnock 12,751 - 12,751 15,904
Councillor, Wolfe 12,104 506 12,610 16,097
Councillor, Anderson 3,053 - 3,053 -
Councillor, Marr 3,578 158 3,736 -
Councillor, Petersen 3,843 173 4,016 -
Councillor, Vardas 4,283 197 4,480 -

123,214 3,428 126,642 127,520

Chief Administrative Officer 171,630 28,872 200,502 199,980

1. Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses, overtime, lump sum payments, and per diem
payments.

2. Employer’s share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of
employees including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision coverage, group life
insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short-term disability
plans, professional memberships and tuition.
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16. COMMITMENTS

The Town of Sundre has an agreement with Wild Rose Assessment Services Inc. to provide assessment
services.  Assessment services are required by the municipality in order to carry out the assessment of
property within each municipality, primarily for taxation purposes.  Under the terms of the agreements the
Town of Sundre is committed to the following minimum payments until the end of March 31, 2022.

January 1, 2022 – March 31, 2022 $  9,810 

The Town of Sundre has an agreement with Jane Finney to provide animal control services.  Under the terms 
of the agreements the Town of Sundre is committed to the following minimum payments until the end of 
December 31, 2022.  

January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 $25,200 

The Town of Sundre has agreements with Environmental 360 Solutions Ltd to provide for the residential 
collection and processing of solid waste, recyclables and compost/organics services.  Under the terms of the 
agreements the Town of Sundre is committed to the following monthly charges: 

Residential Solid Waste January 1, 2022 – May 31, 2022 - $1.37 per household 
Compost/Organics January 1, 2022 – May 31, 2022 - $1.37 per household 
Recyclables  January 1, 2022 – May 31, 2022 - $1.61 per household  

The Town of Sundre has agreements with Angela’s Janitorial Services to provide custodial services to the 
Town of Sundre firehall, town office and town shop facilities.  Under the terms of the agreements the Town 
of Sundre is committed to the following charges: 

Firehall January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 $14,500 
January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 $14,500 
January 1, 2024 – May 31, 2024  $5,750 

Town Office January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 $26,300 
January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 $26,300 
January 1, 2024 – May 31, 2024  $11,175 

Town Shop January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 $18,730 
January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 $18,730 
January 1, 2024 – May 31, 2024  $8,290 

The Town of Sundre has eight agreements with ADT Canada Inc to provide security monitoring services to 
each of the Town owned facilities.  Under the terms of the agreements, the Town of Sundre is committed to 
the following charges: 

January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 $5,179 
January 1, 2023 – March 31, 2023 $1,295 
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16. COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Town of Sundre has an equipment lease agreement with Xerox Financial Services Canada Ltd in regards
to a multifunction printer/copier.  Under the terms of the agreement, the Town of Sundre is committed to the
following charges:

January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 $5,280 
January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 $5,280 
January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2024 $5,280 
January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 $5,280 
January 1, 2026 – August 24, 2026 $3,520 

17. CONTINGENCIES

The Town of Sundre, in the conduct of its normal activities can be named as a defendant in legal
proceedings.  The ultimate outcome of these proceedings can often not be determined until the proceedings
are completed.  Should any loss result from the resolution of these proceedings or if the amount of the loss
can be determined, such amount would be expensed as they become known to the Town.

The Town of Sundre is a member of the Alberta Local Authorities Reciprocal Insurance Exchange
(ALARIE).  Under the terms of the membership, the town could become liable for its proportionate share of
any claim losses in excess of the funds held by the exchange.  Any liability incurred would be accounted for
as a current transaction in the year the losses are determined.

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The town’s financial instruments consist of cash and temporary investments, receivables, investments,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, deposit liabilities and long-term debt.  It is management’s opinion
that the Town is not exposed to significant interest or currency risk arising from these financial statements.

The town is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes, utilities and other accounts receivables.  Credit risk
arises from the possibility that some taxpayers and other customers may experience financial difficulty and
be unable to fulfill their obligations.  The Town’s customers and taxpayers are diverse which minimizes this
risk.

Other than long-term debt or otherwise noted, the carrying value of the financial instrument approximates
fair value.
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19. SEGMENTED DISCLOSURE

The Town is a diversified municipal government that provides a wide range of services to its citizens,
including bylaw, fire, water, wastewater and gas management.

For management reporting purposes, the Town’s operations and activities are organized and reported by
functions and services provided.  Certain functions that have been disclosed in the segmented information,
along with services provided are as follows:

a) General Government
This category encompasses General revenue which includes taxes, government transfers, investment
income, and franchise fees as well as Legislative Services which pertains to Town Council, Chief
Administrative Officer and Legislative Services and also includes Corporate Services which oversees
Financial Services, Taxation Administration, Utilities Administration, Accounts Payable, Accounts
Receivable, Payroll, Insurance and Risk Management, Human Resources, and Information Technology.

b) Protective Services
Protective services includes Bylaw Enforcement, Animal Control, Disaster Services and Fire Services.

c) Transportation Services
This category includes Roads, sidewalk maintenance, street lighting, fleet management and Shop.

d) Planning and development
This category includes municipal planning, development and economic development.

e) Utility Services
This category includes water supply and distribution, water treatment, wastewater treatment and
disposal, waste and recycling and the purchase and distribution of gas services for the Town.

f) Recreation and Culture
Parks and recreation includes the Sundre Community Centre, Arena, Greenwood Campground, Baseball,
Parks, Recreation & Culture grants, Community Services, Trails, Outdoor Rinks, Recreation Fields,
funds provided to the Sundre Municipal Library, and funds provided to Greenwood Neighbourhood
place to provide Family and Community Support Services (FCSS).

For each reported segment, revenues and expenses represent amounts that are directly attributable to the 
segments and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis.  Therefore, certain allocation methodologies 
are employed in the preparation of segmented financial information.  The accounting policies used in these 
segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation of financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. 
For additional information see the Schedule of Segmented Disclosure (Schedule 6). 
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20. REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

In 2021, the Town dissolved the $750,000 revolving demand facility.  Use of the line of credit was limited to
funding current expenditures and obligations of the Town until such time as the taxes levied or to be levied
are collected.  It was secured by the assets of the Town.  The balance outstanding at December 31, 2021 is
nil (2020 – nil).  This line of credit bore interest at a rate of prime plus 1.00% per annum and was payable on
a monthly basis.

21. BUDGET AMOUNTS

The 2021 Budget of the Town of Sundre was approved by Council on December 21, 2020 and has been
reported in the financial statements for information purposes only.

22. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council and Management have approved these financial statements.
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 MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION RETURN

 Municipality Name:

CERTIFICATION

The information contained in this Financial Information Return is presented fairly
to the best of my knowledge.

 For the Year Ending December 31, 2021

Print Name

April 25, 2022Chris Albert

Town of Sundre

Date

#Classification: Protected A

7.1d
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FINANCIAL POSITION  Schedule 9A

Total

1

Assets 0010

Cash and Temporary Investments ............................................. 0020 9,501,738

Taxes and Grants in Place of Taxes Receivable………. 0030

.   Current .................................................................................. 0040 450,106

.   Arrears .................................................................................. 0050 250,494

.   Allowance ............................................................................. 0060

Receivable From Other Governments ....................................... 0070

Loans Receivable .................................................................... 0080

Trade and Other Receivables .................................................. 0090 1,108,343

Debt Charges Recoverable………………………………. 0095

Inventories Held for Resale 0130

.   Land ..................................................................................... 0140

.   Other .................................................................................... 0150

Long Term Investments 0170

.   Federal Government ............................................................. 0180

.   Provincial Government ............................................. 0190

.   Local Governments .............................................................. 0200

.   Other .................................................................................... 0210 27,754

Other Current Assets ................................................................. 0230

Other Long Term Assets ........................................................... 0240

0250

Total Financial Assets 0260 11,338,435

Liabilities 0270

Temporary Loans Payable ........................................................ 0280

Payable To Other Governments ............................................... 0290

Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities .................................... 0300 960,884

Deposit Liabilities ...................................................................... 0310 261,610

Deferred Revenue .................................................................... 0340 821,287

Long Term Debt ....................................................................... 0350 5,371,629

Other Current Liabilities ............................................................. 0360

Asset Retirement Obligations…….………………………… 0365

Other Long Term Liabilities ....................................................... 0370

0380

Total Liabilities 0390 7,415,410

Net Financial Assets (Net Debt) 0395 3,923,025

Non Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets.................................................................. 0400 42,830,159

Inventory for Consumption................................................. 0410 47,821

Prepaid Expenses ................................................................. 0420 45,508

Other……………................................................................. 0430

Total Non-Financial Assets 0440 42,923,488

Accumulated Surplus 0450 46,846,513
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CHANGE IN OPERATING ACCUMULATED SURPLUS  Schedule 9B

Unrestricted Restricted Equity in TCA Total

1 2 3 4

Accumulated Operating Surplus - Beginning of Year 0500 5,338,004 3,077,951 38,096,565 46,512,520

Net Revenue (Expense) .............................................................. 0505 333,993 333,993

Funds Designated For Future Use………………………. 0511 -2,304,110 2,304,110

Restricted Funds - Used for Operations……………………….. 0512 49,700 -49,700

Restricted Funds - Used for TCA…………………………….. 0513 -154,909 154,909

Current Year Funds Used for TCA …………………… 0514 -722,267 722,267

Donated and Contributed TCA……………………………… 0516

Disposals of TCA……………………………………………… 0517 1,099 -1,099

Annual Amortization Expense………………….………………………………….0518 1,979,103 -1,979,103

Long Term Debt - Issued………………………………………………..0519

Long Term Debt - Repaid………………………………………………0521 -464,991 464,991

Capital Debt - Used for TCA……………………… 0522

0523

Other Adjustments……………………………………………….. 0524

Accumulated Operating Surplus - End of Year……………………………….0525 4,210,531 5,177,452 37,458,530 46,846,513
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 FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES BY FUNCTION  Schedule 9C

Revenue Expense

1 2

Total General  0700 4,859,584

Function 0710 1150

General Government 0720 1160

  Council and Other Legislative .....................................................0730 1170 351,836

  General Administration ................................................................0740 589,835 1180 706,182

  Other General Government..................................................................................0750 1190

Protective Services 0760 1200

  Police .........................................................................................0770 1210 56,839

  Fire .............................................................................................0780 348,724 1220 583,742

  Disaster and Emergency Measures ............................................0790 1230 58,402

  Ambulance and First Aid .............................................................0800 1240

  Bylaws Enforcement ...................................................................0810 3,963 1250 130,424

  Other Protective Services...................................................................................0820 6,093 1260 29,550

Transportation 0830 1270

  Common and Equipment Pool .....................................................0840 1280

  Roads, Streets, Walks, Lighting .................................................0850 446,262 1290 1,459,501

  Airport .........................................................................................0860 1300

  Public Transit ..............................................................................0870 1310

  Storm Sewers and Drainage .......................................................0880 1320

  Other Transportation ...................................................................................0890 1330

Environmental Use and Protection 0900 1340

  Water Supply and Distribution ....................................................0910 978,239 1350 1,120,069

  Wastewater Treatment and Disposal ..........................................0920 827,788 1360 883,754

  Waste Management ...................................................................0930 323,492 1370 263,283

  Other Environmental Use and Protection ....................................0940 1380

Public Health and Welfare 0950 1390

  Family and Community Support ...................................................0960 133,247 1400 166,017

  Day Care ....................................................................................0970 1410

  Cemeteries and Crematoriums .....................................................0980 1420

  Other Public Health and Welfare .................................................0990 1430

Planning and Development 1000 1440

  Land Use Planning, Zoning and Development ...........................1010 96,228 1450 276,652

  Economic/Agricultural  Development ..........................................1020 120,813 1460 365,008

  Subdivision Land and Development ...........................................1030 1470

  Public Housing Operations .........................................................1040 1480

  Land, Housing and Building Rentals ...........................................1050 1490

  Other Planning and Development................................. 1060 1500

Recreation and Culture 1070 1510

  Recreation Boards ......................................................................1080 1520

  Parks and Recreation .................................................................1090 930,893 1530 1,685,038

  Culture: Libraries, Museums, Halls ..............................................1100 201,618 1540 329,952

  Convention Centres ....................................................................1110 1550

  Other Recreation and Culture.........................................................1120 1560

Other Utilities 1125 1565

  Gas .......................................................................... 1126 1,742,071 1566 1,564,885

  Electric ..................................................................... 1127 1567

Other ........................................................................................ 1130 1570 1,243,723

Total Revenue/Expense 1140 11,608,850 1580 11,274,857

Net Revenue/Expense 1590 333,993
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 FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES BY TYPE / OBJECT Schedule 9D

Total

1

Revenues 1700

Taxation and Grants in Place 1710

.    Property (net municipal, excluding requisitions).............. 1720 4,859,584

.    Business .............................................................................. 1730

.    Business Revitalization Zone ............................................... 1740

.    Special ................................................................................. 1750

.    Well Drilling .......................................................................... 1760

.    Local Improvement .............................................................. 1770

Sales To Other Governments ................................................... 1790

Sales and User Charges ........................................................... 1800 4,387,996

Penalties and Costs on Taxes .................................................. 1810

Licenses and Permits ................................................................ 1820 117,861

Fines ......................................................................................... 1830 153,629

Franchise and Concession Contracts ....................................... 1840

Returns on Investments (incl. Portfolio Investments) ....... 1850 53,581

Rentals ..................................................................................... 1860 81,714

Insurance Proceeds ................................................................. 1870

Net Gain on Sale of Tangible Capital Assets ............................. 1880

Contributed and Donated Assets………………………. 1885

Federal Government Unconditional Transfers ........................... 1890

Federal Government Conditional Transfers ............................... 1900 42,703

Provincial Government Unconditional Transfers ....................... 1910

Provincial Government Conditional Transfers ........................... 1920 775,878

Local Government Transfers .................................................... 1930 890,070

Transfers From Local Boards and Agencies ............................. 1940

Developer Agreements ....................................................................1960

Offsite Levies  .....................................................................................1962

Other Revenues ....................................................................... 1970 245,834

Total  Revenue 1980 11,608,850

Expenses 1990

Salaries, Wages, and Benefits .................................................. 2000 3,226,606

Contracted and General Services ............................................. 2010 744,537

Purchases from Other Governments ......................................... 2020

Materials, Goods, Supplies, and Utilities ................................... 2030 3,077,111

Provision For Allowances .......................................................... 2040

Transfers to Other Governments ............................................... 2050

Transfers to Local Boards and Agencies ........................... 2060 803,333

Transfers to Individuals and Organizations ............................... 2070

Bank Charges and Short Term Interest ..................................... 2080

Interest on Operating Long Term Debt ..................................... 2090

Interest on Capital Long Term Debt .......................................... 2100 200,444

Accretion of Asset Retirement Obligations………………. 2105

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets ................................................2110 1,979,103

Net Loss on Sale of Tangible Capital Assets………….. 2125

Write Down of Tangible Capital Assets………………… 2127

Other Expenditures ................................................................... 2130 1,243,723

Total Expenses 2140 11,274,857

Net Revenue (Expense) 2150 333,993

#Classification: Protected A              Municipal Affairs - Municipal Financial Information Return 5 of 12 89



 REMEASUREMENT GAINS AND LOSSES Schedule 9Q

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) at 

beginning of the year ………………………… 2171

  Gains ………………………………………………………………………………………………2172

  Losses ………………………………………………………………………………………………2174

  Amounts reclassified to Statement of Operations ………………………………………………………………………………………………2176

Net Remeasurement gains (losses) for the year ………………………………………………………………………………………………2178

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) at 

end of year ………………………………………… 2180
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 REVENUE AND EXPENSE SUPPLEMENTARY DETAIL Schedule 9E

Sales and Provincial Annual Capital Long

User Capital Amortization Term Debt

Charges Transfers Expense Interest Expense

1 2 3 4

General Government 2200

  Council and Other Legislative .....................................................2210

  General Administration ................................................................2220 12,704 98,478 108,658 14,606

  Other General Government..................................................................................2230

Protective Services 2240

  Police .........................................................................................2250

  Fire .............................................................................................2260 163,198 97,760

  Disaster and Emergency Measures ............................................2270 16,216

  Ambulance and First Aid .............................................................2280

  Bylaws Enforcement ...................................................................2290 4,750

  Other Protective Services............................................ 2300

Transportation 2310

  Common and Equipment Pool .....................................................2320

  Roads, Streets, Walks, Lighting .................................................2330 93,754 352,508 581,394 129,893

  Airport .........................................................................................2340

  Public Transit ..............................................................................2350

  Storm Sewers and Drainage .......................................................2360

  Other Transportation ...................................................................................2370

Environmental Use and Protection 2380

  Water Supply and Distribution ....................................................2390 978,239 500,110 54,813

  Wastewater Treatment and Disposal ..........................................2400 827,788 338,760

  Waste Management ...................................................................2410 323,492 8,396

  Other Environmental Use and Protection ....................................2420

Public Health and Welfare 2430

  Family and Community Support ...................................................2440 2,762

  Day Care ....................................................................................2450

  Cemeteries and Crematoriums .....................................................2460

  Other Public Health and Welfare .................................................2470

Planning and Development 2480

  Land Use Planning, Zoning and Development ...........................2490 14,370

  Economic/Agricultural  Development ..........................................2500 1,500

  Subdivision Land and Development ...........................................2510

  Public Housing Operations ....................................... 2520

  Land, Housing and Building Rentals ...........................................2530

  Other Planning and Development................................................2540

Recreation and Culture 2550

  Recreation Boards ......................................................................2560

  Parks and Recreation .................................................................2570 107,444 31,447 296,755 1,132

  Culture: Libraries, Museums, Halls ..............................................2580 144,590

  Convention Centres ....................................................................2590

  Other Recreation and Culture.........................................................2600

Other Utilities 2605

  Gas ...................................................................... 2606 1,718,155 26,304

  Electric ................................................................. 2607

Other ........................................................................................ 2610

Total 2620 4,387,996.00 482,433.00 1,979,103.00 200,444.00

Revenue      Expenses
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 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS SUPPLEMENTARY DETAIL Schedule 9F

Donated or Principal Principal

Purchased Contributed Additions Reductions

1 2 3 4

General Government 2700

  Council and Other Legislative .....................................................2710

  General Administration ................................................................2720 119,495 19,804

  Other General Government..................................................................................2730

Protective Services 2740

  Police .........................................................................................2750

  Fire .............................................................................................2760 21,382

  Disaster and Emergency Measures ............................................2770

  Ambulance and First Aid .............................................................2780

  Bylaws Enforcement ...................................................................2790

  Other Protective Services............................................................2800

Transportation 2810

  Common and Equipment Pool .....................................................2820

  Roads, Streets, Walks, Lighting .................................................2830 504,665 292,873

  Airport .........................................................................................2840

  Public Transit ..............................................................................2850

  Storm Sewers and Drainage .......................................................2860

  Other Transportation ...................................................................................2870

Environmental Use and Protection 2880

  Water Supply and Distribution ....................................................2890 117,067

  Wastewater Treatment and Disposal ..........................................2900 53,932

  Waste Management ...................................................................2910

  Other Environmental Use and Protection ....................................2920

Public Health and Welfare 2930

  Family and Community Support ...................................................2940

  Day Care ....................................................................................2950

  Cemeteries and Crematoriums .....................................................2960

  Other Public Health and Welfare .................................................2970

Planning and Development 2980

  Land Use Planning, Zoning and Development ...........................2990

  Economic/Agricultural  Development ..........................................3000

  Subdivision Land and Development ...........................................3010

  Public Housing Operations ................................................. 3020

  Land, Housing and Building Rentals ...........................................3030

  Other Planning and Development................................................3040

Recreation and Culture 3050

  Recreation Boards ......................................................................3060

  Parks and Recreation .................................................................3070 121,471 35,247

  Culture: Libraries, Museums, Halls ..............................................3080

  Convention Centres ....................................................................3090

  Other Recreation and Culture.........................................................3100

Other Utilities 3105

  Gas ...................................................................... 3106 56,231

  Electric ................................................................. 3107

Other ........................................................................................ 3110

Total 3120 877,176.00 464,991.00

Capital Long Term DebtTangible Capital Assets
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 CHANGE IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS Schedule 9G

Balance at 

Beginning of Balance at 

Year Additions Reductions End of Year

1 2 3 4

Tangible Capital Assets - Cost

 Engineered Structures 3200

 Roadway Systems…………………….………………… 3201 12,537,207 429,152 12,966,359

 Light Rail Transit Systems…………………………….. 3202

 Water Systems………………………………………… 3203 9,517,610 9,517,610

 Wastewater Systems……………………………… 3204 12,183,868 20,400 12,204,268

 Storm Systems……………………………………. 3205

 Fibre Optics…………………………………………….. 3206

 Electricity Systems…………………………………….. 3207

 Gas Distribution Systems…………………………. 3208 415,965 40,190 456,155

 Total Engineered Structures ........................................................3210 34,654,650 489,742 35,144,392

  Construction In Progress…………………………………….. 3219

  Buildings ........................................................................ 3220 15,498,704 16,041 15,514,745

  Machinery and Equipment ................................................... 3230 3,692,271 182,182 3,874,453

  Land .................................................................................... 3240 9,770,110 9,770,110

  Land Improvements.............................................................. 3245 2,225,217 148,454 2,373,671

  Vehicles ............................................................................... 3250 1,727,604 40,757 10,995 1,757,366

Total Capital Property Cost 3260 67,568,556.00 877,176.00 10,995.00 68,434,737.00

Accumulated Amortization

 Engineered Structures 3270

 Roadway Systems 3271 5,086,077 536,008 5,622,085

 Light Rail Transit Systems 3272

 Water Systems 3273 3,237,698 225,569 3,463,267

 Wastewater Systems 3274 4,732,788 317,784 5,050,572

 Storm Systems 3275

 Fibre Optics 3276

 Electricity Systems 3277

 Gas Distribution Systems 3278 285,739 9,001 294,740

  Engineered Structures ........................................................ 3280 13,342,302 1,088,362 14,430,664

  Buildings .............................................................................. 3290 6,476,052 464,817 6,940,869

  Machinery and Equipment ................................................... 3300 1,942,245 214,374 2,156,619

  Land .................................................................................... 3310

  Land Improvements................................................ 3315 937,680 133,946 1,071,626

  Vehicles ............................................................................... 3320 937,092 77,604 9,896 1,004,800

Total Accumulated Amortization 3330 23,635,371.00 1,979,103.00 9,896.00 25,604,578.00

Net Book Value of Capital Property 3340 43,933,185 42,830,159

Capital Long Term Debt (Net) 3350 5,836,620 5,371,629

Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 3400 38,096,565.00 37,458,530.00
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 LONG TERM DEBT SUPPORT Schedule 9H

Operating 

Purposes

Capital 

Purposes Total

1 2 3

Long Term Debt Support 3405

Supported by General Tax Levies ............................................ 3410 4,148,599 4,148,599

Supported by Special Levies .................................................... 3420

Supported by Utility Rates ........................................................ 3430 1,223,030 1,223,030

Other ........................................................................................ 3440

Total Long Term Debt Principal Balance 3450 5,371,629.00 5,371,629.00

 LONG TERM DEBT SOURCES Schedule 9I

Operating 

Purposes

Capital 

Purposes Total

1 2 3

Alberta Capital Finance Authority……………………………….. 3500 5,371,629 5,371,629

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation ............................. 3520

Mortgage Borrowing .................................................................. 3600

Other ......................................................................................... 3610

Total Long Term Debt Principal Balance 3620 5,371,629.00 5,371,629.00

 FUTURE LONG TERM DEBT REPAYMENTS Schedule 9J

Operating 

Purposes

Capital 

Purposes Total

1 2 3

Principal Repayments by Year 3700

Current + 1 ................................................................................ 3710 329,461 329,461

Current + 2 ................................................................................ 3720 341,894 341,894

Current + 3 ................................................................................ 3730 354,819 354,819

Current + 4 ................................................................................ 3740 368,255 368,255

Current + 5 ................................................................................ 3750 382,224 382,224

Thereafter ................................................................................. 3760 3,594,976 3,594,976

Total Principal 3770 5,371,629.00 5,371,629.00

Interest by Year 3780

Current + 1 ................................................................................ 3790 185,884 185,884

Current + 2 ................................................................................ 3800 173,451 173,451

Current + 3 ................................................................................ 3810 160,527 160,527

Current + 4 ................................................................................ 3820 147,091 147,091

Current + 5 ................................................................................ 3830 133,122 133,122

Thereafter ................................................................................. 3840 630,290 630,290

Total Interest 3850 1,430,365.00 1,430,365.00
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 PROPERTY TAXES AND GRANTS IN PLACE Schedule 9K

Property Grants -

Taxes in Place Total

1 2 3

Municipal Property Taxes 3900

Residential Land and Improvements ..................................

Total 3910 3,406,062 3,406,062

Non-Residential 3920

  Land and Improvements (Excluding M & E)…………... 3935 1,241,744 1,241,744

  Machinery and Equipment ................................................... 3950 949 949

  Linear Property .................................................................... 3960 212,907 212,907

  Small Business Tax ..................................................................................3965

Farm Land ................................................................................ 3980

Adjustments to Property Taxes ................................................. 3990 -2,078 -2,078

Total Municipal Property Taxes and Grants In Place 4000 4,859,584 4,859,584

Provincial and Seniors Foundation Requisitions 4010

Education

  Residential/Farm Land .................................................................................…................................................…4031 765,613

  Non-Residential ................................................................................................……………… 4035 332,749

Seniors Lodges ........................................................................................................……………………………………..4090 145,361

Designated Industrial Property ...................................................................................................................................4099

Other ........................................................................................................……………………………………..4100

Adjustments to Requisition Transfers ......................................................................……………………………………….4110

Total Requisition Transfers 4120 1,243,723

 GRANTS IN PLACE OF TAXES Schedule 9L

Property Business Other

Taxes Taxes Taxes Total

1 2 3 4

Federal Government .................................................................. 4200

Provincial Government ............................................................... 4210

Local Government ..................................................................... 4220

Other .......................................................................................... 4230

Total 4240
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 DEBT LIMIT Schedule 9AA

Debt Limit ......................…………………….......................................…………………………………………………………5700 14,824,041

Total Debt ............................................................………………………………………………………………………………5710 5,371,629

Debt Service Limit ..................................................................………………………………………………………………..5720 2,470,674

Total Debt Service Costs .......................................................................................………………………………………5730 667,572

Enter prior year Line 3450 Column 2 balance here: 5,836,620

 GRANT AND DEFERRED GRANT REVENUE SCHEDULE Schedule 9P

Cash and Temporary Investments 8820 9,501,738

Restricted Cash by Grant
Municipal Sustainability Initiative Capital 8825 497,985

Municipal Sustainability Initiative Operating 8826 22,072

Federal Gas Tax Fund 8827 265,355

Alberta Community Partnership- Intermunicipal Collaboration 8828

Alberta Community Partnership- Municipal Restructuring 8829

Alberta Community Partnership- Mediation and Cooperative Processes 8830

Alberta Community Partnership- Municipal Internship 8831

Alberta Community Partnership- Local Land Use Planning 8832

Alberta Community Partnership- Strategic Initiative 8833

Alberta Community Partnership- Regional Collaboration Program 8834

Other Grants 8835 37

Total Restricted Cash 8865 785,449

Unrestricted Cash 8870 8,716,289

Accounts Receivable - Grants 8872

Deferred Revenue 8875 821,287

Deferred Revenue by Grant
Municipal Sustainability Initiative Capital 8880 497,985

Municipal Sustainability Initiative Operating 8881 22,072

Federal Gas Tax Fund 8882 265,355

Alberta Community Partnership- Intermunicipal Collaboration 8883

Alberta Community Partnership- Municipal Restructuring 8884

Alberta Community Partnership- Mediation and Cooperative Processes 8885

Alberta Community Partnership- Municipal Internship 8886

Alberta Community Partnership- Local Land Use Planning 8887

Alberta Community Partnership- Strategic Initiative 8888

Alberta Community Partnership- Regional Collaboration Program 8889

Other Grants 8890 37

Total Deferred Revenue by Grant 8898 785,449

Other Deferred Revenue 8899 35,838
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Town of Sundre 

Notes to the Financial Information Return 

December 31, 2021 

1. Basis of accounting

This report includes the financial statements in relation to the Financial Information Return Manual (the 

“return”). This return has been prepared in accordance with the significant accounting policies set out 

below to assist the Town of Sundre with the financial reporting requirements of the Municipal 

Government Act (the “agreement”) based on the accounting principles prescribed by the Minister of 

Alberta Municipal Affairs (the “Minister”) as provided for in Section 277 of the Municipal government Act 

and the Financial Information Return Manual for December 31, 2021 (the “agreement”) between the 

Town of Sundre and the Minister. This special purpose statement has been prepared by the Town of 

Sundre for the Minister. 

The return is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes 

the effect of transactions and events in the period in which the transactions and events occur, regardless 

of whether there has been a receipt or payment of cash or its equivalent. 

Revenues are recognized as they are earned and measurable. Funds from external parties and earnings 

thereon that are restricted by agreement or legislation are accounted for as deferred revenue until used for 

the purpose specified. 

Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services 

and/or legal obligation to pay. 

2. Reporting entity

The report reflects the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures, and changes in fund balances of the 

reporting entity that comprises all the organizations that are accountable for the administration of their 

financial affairs and resources to the Council and are controlled by the municipality.  

3. Government Transfers

Government transfers are the transfers of assets from senior levels of government that are not the result 

of an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct financial 

return.  Government transfers are recognized in the report as revenues in the period that the events giving 

rise to the transfer occurred, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met 

by the municipality, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be determined. 

4. Deferred Revenue

Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties pursuant to

legislation, regulation or agreement and is restricted and may only be used in the conduct of certain

programs, in the completion of specific work or for the purchase of tangible capital assets.  In addition,

certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be performed.

Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are incurred, services performed or the

tangible capital assets are acquired.
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5. Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable

Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables consist of current and non-current property tax levies which 

remain outstanding at December 31, 2020. 

6. Cash and Temporary Investments

Cash is comprised of cash, temporary investments and designated cash deposited with financial

institutions.  Temporary investments are defined as short-term deposits with original maturities of three

months or less and that can be converted to cash as required. Designated cash relates to conditional

grants received.

7. Investments

Investments are recorded at amortized cost.  When there is a loss in value that is other than a temporary

decline, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss.

8. Prepaid Local Improvement Charges

Construction and borrowing costs associated with local improvement projects are recovered through

annual special assessments during the period of the related borrowings.  These levies are collectable from

property owners for work performed by the municipality.

Where a taxpayer has elected to prepay the outstanding local improvement charges, such amounts are 

recorded as deferred revenue.  Deferred revenue is amortized to revenue on a straight-line basis over the 

remaining term of the related borrowings. 

In the event that the prepaid amounts are applied against the related borrowings, the deferred revenue is 

amortized to revenue by an amount equal to the debt repayment. 

9. Non-Financial Assets

Non-Financial Assets are assets that are not available to discharge existing liabilities but held for use in 

Town operations.  Such assets have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended 

for sale in the normal course of Town operations.  The change in non-financial assets during the year, 

together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change in Net Financial Assets for the 

year. 

10. Reserves for Future Expenditures

Reserves are established at the discretion of Council to set aside funds for future operating and capital

expenditures.  Transfers to and/or from reserves are reflected in accumulated surplus.

11. Contributions of tangible capital assets

Contributed tangible capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of receipt and are recorded as 

revenue in the year of acquisition 
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12. Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to 

acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the 

tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life as follows: 

Asset Type Estimated Useful Life 

Land improvements 15 – 25 years 

Buildings 25 – 30 years 

Engineered Structures: 

Water System 

Waste Water System 

Gas System 

Other engineered structures 

30-40 years

30 - 75 years

30 – 50 years

5 – 40 years

Machinery and Equipment 3 - 40 years 

Vehicles 10 – 25 years 

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal. 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. Government 

contributions for the acquisition of capital assets are recorded as capital revenue and do not reduce the 

related capital asset costs. 

13. Inventories

Inventories of materials and supplies are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value with cost 

determined by the average cost method. 

14. Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefit and

risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases.  All other leases are

accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

15. Contaminated Sites

The Town of Sundre reviews all contaminated sites for possible liabilities associated with the remediation

of such sites.  Management has assessed such sites and has determined there is no liability regarding the

remediation of these sites.

16. Related Party Transactions

Disclosure of information about related party transactions and the relationship underlying them is

required when they have occurred at a value different from that which would have been arrived at if the

parties were unrelated, and when the transactions have, or could have, a material financial effect on the

financial statements.  Related parties and transactions are reviewed annually.
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PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, in these unprecedented times, Operation Smile Canada recognizes the 

importance of engaging community members in ways that enable them to use 

their passion and creativity to encourage positive change; 

WHEREAS, The Longest Day of SMILE® encourages community ambassadors to 

raise awareness and funds to help a child born with a cleft condition smile and 

change their life with free, safe, cleft surgery and comprehensive care. From sun-

up to sun-down, from coast to coast to coast, Canadians are dedicating June 19, 

2022, and time leading up to it, to helping children SMILE; 

THEREFORE, I, Mayor Richard Warnock, on behalf of Town of Sundre Council and 

Citizens, proclaim June 19, 2022, as the Longest Day of SMILE® in Sundre. 

____________________________ ____________________ 

Mayor Richard Warnock  Date 

8.2a
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---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Candy Keillor <Candy.Keillor@operationsmile.org> 
Date: Thu, Apr 7, 2022 at 4:15 PM 
Subject: Invitation to Proclaim June 19th, 2022 The Longest Day of SMILES® 
To: richard.w@sundre.com <richard.w@sundre.com> 

Dear Mayor Richard Warnock, 

 In these unprecedented times, Operation Smile Canada recognizes the importance of engaging 
community members in ways that enable them to use their passion and creativity to encourage 
positive change.

Which is why we are inviting you as the Mayor of Town of Sundre to proclaim June 19th, 
2022 as the Longest Day of SMILES® in your community. 

The Longest Day of SMILES® encourages community ambassadors to raise awareness 
and funds to help a child born with a cleft condition smile and change their life with free, 
safe, cleft surgery and comprehensive care. From sun-up to sun-down, from coast to 
coast to coast, Canadians are dedicating June 19th, 2022, and the time leading up to it, 
to helping children SMILE. 

Operation Smile Canada is a volunteer-delivered global medical charity that exists to 
ensure everyone has access to safe, effective surgery that they need wherever they live 
in the world. Surgery that will change a child’s life forever… help families, communities, 
countries, regions and yes, the world. 

By proclaiming June 19th, 2022, as the Longest Day of SMILES® in Town of Sundre 
and challenging other communities to do the same, you can provide waiting children 
with exceptional cleft care and a hopeful future with a new smile. 

Our Community Engagement & Fundraising team is happy to support you and your community 
should you choose to participate with us.

To confirm your participation or to request more info, please email Candy Keillor, Community 
Engagement Specialist candy.keillor@operationsmile.org

To learn more about the transformational impact of Operation Smile Canada, 
visit: operationsmile.ca

We look forward to collaborating with you and your team to make this the best Longest Day of 
SMILES® yet! Together we can make a difference one smile at a time!

 Keep Smiling,

Candy Keillor (she/her) 
Community Engagement Specialist 

8.2b
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PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, Rural Health providers are powerful assets in their communities. Not 

only do their health-care skills and practices enhance their community’s quality of 

life, but these professionals also contribute to rural life on a more personal level. 

They have special relationships with their patients and community as family, 

friends, neighbour, volunteers, teachers and mentors; 

WHEREAS, Community Volunteers, lead by local health professional attraction and 

retention committees, are the heart and soul of their communities. These local 

volunteers go above and beyond to support health care and health-care providers 

in their communities, developing innovative and collaborative approaches to 

successfully attract and retain health-care providers, and help keep health care 

close to home; 

THEREFORE, I, Mayor Richard Warnock, on behalf of Town of Sundre Council and 

Citizens, do hereby proclaim, May 30 to June 3, 2022, as Alberta Rural Health Week 

in Sundre. I urge all community residents to show appreciation for the 

contributions of the rural health professionals and community volunteers whose 

abilities and efforts enhance the quality of life in rural Alberta 

_____________________ _____________________ 

Mayor Richard Warnock  Date 

Alberta’s Rural Health Professions Action Plan 

8.3a
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#/D/M/Y January 10, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Res. # Council Motion Action Status

001-10-01-22 MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the agenda be approved 

as presented.

002-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Minutes of the Regular

Council Meeting of Council held on December 20, 2021, be

approved as presented. 

003-10-01-22
MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the Mountain View Regional Parks, Recreation, and

Culture Master Plan and presentation as information.

004-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept the Council Orientation Public Participation 

Policy review as presented for information.

005-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council waive the whole fee of the assessed penalties on Roll

909000 in the amount of $3,014.76.

MEMBER IN FAVOUR OPPOSED

Mayor Richard Warnock ✓

Councillor Connie Anderson ✓

Councillor Owen Petersen ✓

Councillor Todd Dalke ✓

Councillor Jaime Marr ✓

Councillor Paul Isaac ✓

Councillor Chris Vardas ✓

TOTAL VOTES 2 5

DEFEATED

006-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council 

waive a portion of the assessed penalties on Roll 909000 in 

the amount of $1908.00.

MEMBER IN FAVOUR OPPOSED

Mayor Richard Warnock ✓

Councillor Connie Anderson ✓

Councillor Owen Petersen ✓

Councillor Todd Dalke ✓

Councillor Jaime Marr ✓

Councillor Paul Isaac ✓

Councillor Chris Vardas ✓

TOTAL VOTES 3 4

DEFEATED

007-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

waive a portion of the assessed penalties on Roll 909000 in

the amount of $1,008.00.

MEMBER IN FAVOUR OPPOSED

9.1a
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Mayor Richard Warnock ✓

Councillor Connie Anderson ✓

Councillor Owen Petersen ✓

Councillor Todd Dalke ✓

Councillor Jaime Marr ✓

Councillor Paul Isaac ✓

Councillor Chris Vardas ✓

TOTAL VOTES 5 2

CARRIED

008-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the correspondence from the National Police

Federation as presented, as information.

009-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that Council go into closed

meeting at 7:31 p.m.

010-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that Council return to an open 

meeting at 8:34 p.m.

011-10-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas being that the agenda matters 

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m.

#/D/M/Y January 24, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Res. # Council Motion Action Status

CAO, Linda Nelson introduced to Council, Benazir Thaha

Valencia, Senior Planner, welcoming Benazir to the Team.

012-24-01-22 MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the agenda be approved as 

presented.

013-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Minutes of the 

Regular Council Meeting of Council held on January 10, 2022, 

be approved as presented. 

014-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council 

approve the amendment to Schedule “H”, the Terms of 

Reference for the Sundre Wellness Advocacy Committee.  

Opposed: Councillor Marr

015-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council 

appoint Mr. Gerald Ingeveld and Mrs. Joyce Wicks to the 

Sundre Community Wellness Advocacy Committee for a one-

year term, ending October 2022.

Leg. Serv.

Completed
Appendix 1 & 

2

016-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the enclosed documents on the Regional Rail for 

passenger rail services between Edmonton and Calgary as 

information.

017-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

direct Administration to draft a letter of support for the 

proposed Regional Rail service between Edmonton and 

Calgary.

Leg. Serv.

Completed Appendix 3

018-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council 

directs Administration to compose a letter of support for the 

“Origins” project.

Leg. Serv.

Completed Appendix 4
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019-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council reaffirm support for a facilitated strategic planning 

session for the Town of Sundre on April 9th and 10th, 2022.

020-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the 2021 Year End Departmental Reports as 

information.

021-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept Mayor Warnock’s report as information.

022-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept Councillor Anderson’s report as information.

023-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept Councillor Isaac’s report as information.

024-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept Councillor Petersen’s report as information.

025-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept Councillor Vardas’s report as information.

026-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept Councillor Marr’s report as information.

027-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept the correspondence from Mountain View 

Senior’s Housing as presented, as information.

028-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the correspondence to Didsbury Mayor Rhonda Hunter 

regarding a Regional Chili Cook-Off, as information.
Leg. Serv.

Complete Appendix 5

029-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that Council go into closed 

meeting at 6:49 p.m.

030-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that Council return to an open 

meeting at 7:58 p.m.

031-24-01-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas being that the agenda matters 

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m.

#/D/M/Y February 7, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Res. # Council Motion Action Status

CAO, Linda Nelson introduced to Council, Justin Caslor,

Director of Infrastructure, welcoming Justin to the Team.

032-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the agenda be approved

as presented.   

CAO, Linda Nelson, acknowledged that Councillor Isaac 

adhered to the MGA and notified the CAO earlier of his 

absence this evening.

033-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Minutes of the Regular 

Council Meeting of Council held on January 24, 2022, be 

approved as presented. 
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034-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Sundre

Citizens on Patrol in the amount of $1,000.

035-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Olds

and District Music Festival in the amount of $500.

036-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Sundre

Seniors Walking Club in the amount of $1,136.

037-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Sundre

Municipal Library in the amount of $270.

038-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Shady Grove

Bluegrass Festival in the amount of $1,500.

039-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for 2022

Sundre Pro Rodeo Parade Committee in the amount of $3,000.

040-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Historical

Society and Chamber of Commerce Winterfest in the amount

of $2,825.

041-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Greenwood

Neighbourhood Place – The Den Youth Centre in the amount

of $2,250.

042-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for

Sundre Arts Society in the amount of $4,000.

043-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Sundre West

Country Centre in the amount of $1,000.

044-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Sundre U13

Provincial Ice Hockey Tournament in the amount of $3,000 in

kind.

MEMBER IN FAVOUR OPPOSED

Mayor Richard Warnock ✓

Councillor Connie Anderson ✓

Councillor Owen Petersen ✓

Councillor Todd Dalke ✓

Councillor Jaime Marr ✓

Councillor Paul Isaac x x

Councillor Chris Vardas ✓

TOTAL VOTES 3 3

DEFEATED
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045-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for

Sundre U13 Provincial Ice Hockey Tournament in the amount

of $1653 in kind.

MEMBER IN FAVOUR OPPOSED

Mayor Richard Warnock ✓

Councillor Connie Anderson ✓

Councillor Owen Petersen ✓

Councillor Todd Dalke ✓

Councillor Jaime Marr ✓

Councillor Paul Isaac x x

Councillor Chris Vardas ✓

TOTAL VOTES 4 3

CARRIED

046-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the Grants to Organizations Funding for Sundre

Pickleball Group in the amount of $0.00.

047-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

approve the QMP for the Sundre Gas Utility and that the 

Mayor and CAO be authorized to sign on behalf of Council.
Leg Serv.

Complete Appendix 6

048-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

proclaim the week of May 9 to 13, 2022 as “Economic

Development Week” in Sundre.
Leg. Serv.

Complete Appendix 7 

049-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council accept the presentation by staff as information. 

050-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the correspondence from the Town of Gibbons as

presented, as information.

051-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the correspondence to Alberta Regional Rail in Support

of Regional Rail in MVC as presented as information.

052-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council accept the correspondence to Enhanced Energy Inc. in

support of CCU as presented as information.

053-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that Council go into closed

meeting at 7:21 p.m.

054-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that Council return to an open 

meeting at 8:10 p.m.

055-07-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen being that the agenda matters

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

#/D/M/Y February 28, 2022 Regular Council Meeting
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Res. # Council Motion Action Status

056-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the agenda be approved 

as presented.

057-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Minutes of the Regular 

Council Meeting of Council held on February 7, 2022, be 

approved as presented. 

058-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the Sundre RCMP presentation, as information.

059-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council extends their gratitude to the former mayor and

councillors for their years of service to this community.

060-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the broadband report as information.

061-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre accept 

update on the Wastewater Treatment Facility Pilot project as 

information.

062-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

appoint Councillor Marr to the Sundre Communities in Bloom

Ad hoc Committee.
Leg Serv.

Complete Appendix 8

063-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the report on the Regional Film Production and Tech

Information Database and Website as information.

064-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council proclaim March 8, 2022, as International Women’s

Day in the Town of Sundre.
Leg Serv.

Complete Appendix 9

065-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the Departmental Reports for January 2022 as 

information. 

Councillor Isaac out of meeting at 6:54 p.m.

066-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council accept Mayor Warnock’s report as information.

067-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

accept Councillor Isaac’s report as information.

068-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept Councillor Marr’s report as information.

Councillor Isaac returned to meeting 6:57 p.m.

069-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

direct administration to contact our neighbouring

municipalities and to discuss the viability of hosting one of the

two Alberta Games events.  

Report given at  

March 14, 2022 

RCM

070-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that Council go into closed

meeting at 7:12 p.m.

Chris Albert and Third-Party attendee left the closed meeting at 8:00 p.m.

Councillor Dalke out of meeting at 6:49 p.m.

Councillor Dalke returned to meeting at 6:50 p.m.
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071-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that Council return to an open

meeting at 9:24 p.m.

072-28-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson being that the agenda matters

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 9:24 p.m.

#/D/M/Y March 14, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Res. # Council Motion Action Status

073-14-03-22 MOVED by Councillor Anderson that Council go into closed

meeting at 5:28 p.m.

074-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that Council return to an open 

meeting at 6:00 p.m.

075-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the agenda be approved as 

presented.

076-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Minutes of the Regular

Council Meeting of Council held on February 28, 2022, be

approved as presented. 

077-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the presentation on the current mental health and

wellness climate in Sundre as information.

078-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council accept the presentation from the SPOG representative

as information.

079-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept the update as information.

080-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the Q4 2021 Quarterly Financial reports as information.

081-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council table this topic to the March 28 regular council

meeting.

Form 26 Local 

Authorities 

Election Act - 

Tabled & Moved 

to March 28

See Motion: 094-

28-03-22

082-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council

support the request to enter into an Engineering Services

Agreement with McElhanney Inc. for a period of two years (2),

with two options to renew for two years for each term, and

that the CAO be authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf of

the Town.

083-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept the correspondence from Alberta 

Municipalities (formerly AUMA) on the pending resolution 

entitled “Cannabis Assessment and Taxation” as information.  

084-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council accept the correspondence from the Minister of 

Municipal Affairs on Budget 2022 as presented as information. 
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085-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the correspondence from the Mayor of Red Deer, letter 

of gratitude, as presented as information. 

086-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that Council go into closed 

meeting at 7:35 p.m.

087-14-02-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that Council return to an open

meeting at 8:50  p.m.

088-14-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac being that the agenda matters

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m.

#/D/M/Y March 28, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Res. # Council Motion Action Status

089-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the agenda be approved

as amended as follows:

1) Change to Item 5.4; the delegation for Sundre Strong had

to cancel due to illness and will reschedule for another date.

090-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Minutes of the

Regular Council Meeting of Council held on March 14, 2022,

be approved as presented.

091-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the presentation from the Sundre SPRUCE will take the

challenge and choose a date to meet with SPRUCE.

092-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the presentation from the Sundre & District Historical

Society representative as information.

093-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the presentation from the Sundre Aquaplex

representative as information.

094-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre 

Council does not choose to pursue collection of the monies at 

this time, but that we set a date that it be paid in a year from 

today.  

095-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

approve the increase in the Capital Budget to $85,000 for the

installation of lighting along the Lions Park and Prairie Creek

Pathways, with funding to be drawn from the Gas Tax and the

Community Revitalization Fund.

096-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council accept the verbal presentation as information.

097-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the Departmental Reports for February 2022 as

information.

098-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council

accept Mayor Warnock’s report as information.

099-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council accept Councillor Vardas’ report as information.
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100-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council accept Councillor Marr’s report as information.

101-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

accept Councillor Petersen’s report as information.

102-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council

participate in the Bowden Daze Parade.

Leg. Serv. To 

advise # of 

attendees Appendix 10

103-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that Council go into closed

meeting at 7:20 p.m.

104-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that Council return to an open

meeting at 7:40 p.m.

105-28-03-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson being that the agenda matters

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.

#/D/M/Y April 11, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Res. # Council Motion Action Status

106-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the agenda be approved as 

presented or amended as follows: 1. Remove Item 5 

Delegation - Sundre Strong unable to attend meeting.

107-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Minutes of the Regular

Council Meeting of Council held on March 28, 2022, be

approved as presented.

108-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke that the Town of Sundre Council

give first reading to Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw.

109-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council give second reading to Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax

Rate Bylaw.

110-11-04-22 MOVED by Councillor Marr that the Town of Sundre Council

give unanimous consent for Third and Final Reading to Bylaw

2022-04 the 2022 Tax Rate Bylaw.

110-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

give third and final reading to Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax

Rate Bylaw.

111-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

give third and final reading to Bylaw 2022-04 the 2022 Tax

Rate Bylaw.

112-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that the Town of Sundre

Council proclaim the week of May 12 to 21, 2022 as “National

Public Works Week” in Sundre.

113-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Petersen that the Town of Sundre

Council accept the invitation to participate in the pancake

breakfast for Aggie Days on May 14, 2022, and in gratitude

proclaim May 14, 2022, as “Thank a Farmer Day” in the Town

of Sundre.

Leg. Serv. to 

advise MVC # of 

attendees Appendix 11
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114-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Vardas that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the letter from the Safety Codes Council regarding the

2021 Annual Internal Review under the Fire Discipline as

information.

115-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council

accept the verbal report delivered by the Chief Administrative

Officer regarding the Provincial U13 Hockey Tournament held

at the Sundre Arena, March 31 to April 3, 2022, as

information.

116-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that the Town of Sundre Council 

accept the letter from the Town of Fox Creek as information 

and that Administration prepare a letter in support of the 

Town of Fox Creek to the Alberta Utilities Commission.

Leg. Serv. 

117-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Isaac that Council go into closed 

meeting at 6:50 p.m.

118-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Anderson that Council return to an open

meeting at 7:20 p.m.

119-11-04-22

MOVED by Councillor Dalke being that the agenda matters

have been concluded the meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.
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Mayor Richard Warnock 21,500.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

01-20-2022 Red Deer River Municipal Users Group Regular Meeting Per Diem 100.00$     21,400.00$     

01-05-2022 ABMunis EPR Municipal Workshop Per Diem 80.00$     21,320.00$     

01-17-2022 Sundre Wellness Advocacy Committee Per Diem 80.00$     21,240.00$     

01-18-2022 Mayors South Central Alberta Committee Per Diem 80.00$     21,160.00$     

01-19-2022 ABMunis Alberta Provincial Police Service Per Diem 80.00$     21,080.00$     

02-23-2022 SPOG - Meeting Olds Per Diem 100.00$     20,980.00$     

02-02-2022 Keep Alberta RCMP Engagement Meeting - Olds Per Diem 120.00$     20,860.00$     

02-10-2022 AB Provincial Police Transition Study Meeting - Olds Per Diem 120.00$     20,740.00$     

02-14-2022 Sundre Wellness Advocacy Committee - Sundre Per Diem 80.00$     20,660.00$     

02-17-2022 Brownlee LLP Emerging Trends in Municipal Law - Zoom Meeting Per Diem 240.00$     20,420.00$     

02-02-2022

Keep AB RCMP, Provincial Police Study Meeting, MVSH Chair , Succession 

Meeting, SPOG, CAEP Mileage/Meals 337.00$     20,083.00$     

02-03-2022 Mayor's Meeting Food 28.19$     20,054.81$     

1,445.19$     20,054.81$     

 Spent  Remaining 

Councillor Connie Anderson 12,650.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

-$     

-$     12,650.00$     

 Spent   Remaining 

SCHEDULE A - 2022
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Councillor Todd Dalke

12,650.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

-$     12,650.00$     
 Spent  Remaining 

Councillor Paul Isaac

12,650.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

9-Apr-22 2022 Strategic Planning Per Diem 280.00$     

280.00$     12,370.00$     

 Spent   Remaining 

Councillor Jaime Marr

12,650.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

01-19-2022 Library Monthly Meeting Per Diem 80.00$     12,570.00$     

01-18-2022 Aquaplex Monthly Meeting Per Diem 80.00$     12,490.00$     

02-03-2022 ITAC Calgary Conference Registration Registration 299.00$     12,191.00$     

459.00$     12,191.00$     
 Spent  Remaining 
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Councillor Owen Peterson

12,650.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

01-18-2022 Museum Board Meeting Per Diem 80.00$     12,570.00$     

02-15-2022 SDHS Monthly Meeting Per Diem 80.00$     12,490.00$     

160.00$     12,490.00$     

 Spent  Remaining 

Councillor Chris Vardas

12,650.00$     

Date Description Expense Cost Balance

02-17-2022 Sundre to Nexsource Sylvan/CAEP Meeting Red Deer Mileage 341.18$     12,308.82$     

02-03-2022 ITAC - Calgary - Conference Registration Registration 299.00$     12,009.82$     

2022-04-09 2022 Strategic Planning Per Diem 280.00$     11,729.82$     

920.18$     11,729.82$     

 Spent   Remaining 

122



DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 

DEPARTMENT Corporate Services 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Albert 

DATE April 25, 2022 

FOR MONTH OF Q1 2022 

TOPIC #1 2021 Year-End and Audit 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: The audit is progressing very well with over 100 requests 
responded to to-date.  As in previous year, COVID-19 protocols 
prevented the on-site visit and testing is being completed 
remotely during the two week period beginning March 28th.  All 
pre-selected information was provided prior to start date, which 
speeds up the process.   PriceWaterhouseCoopers is scheduled to 
present their report and the audited financial statements at the 
April 25th Regular Council Meeting. 

TOPIC # 2 Level of Service Open House 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: The Level of Service Open House was held on March 24th and was lightly 
attending by members of the public.  Despite the lower attendance, 
good conversations appear to be had. 

TOPIC #3 Preparation for Strategic Planning Session and Spring Workshop 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: As a component of preparing for the next 4-yr cycle of the Town’s 
Operating Budget and Capital Plan, it is important to understand the 
new Council’s priorities and vision.  On April 9th & 10th, Council will be 
attending a Strategic Planning Session to discuss their long-term vision 
and set strategic priorities.  This will be followed by the Spring 
Workshop from Apr 22nd to 24th, where brainstorming of initiatives and 
projects will occur to formulate what further information needs to be 
provided for the Fall Workshop to develop the long-term budgets. 

TOPIC #4 Asset Management 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: An Asset Management policy was approved by Council in June 2021. 
This is a multi-year project and throughout 2022 participation of all 
departments and Council will be solicited.  Initial discussions have been 
initiated by the new Director of Infrastructure highlighting the 
importance of the long-term success and use of the project. 
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 

DEPARTMENT Planning and Development 

SUBMITTED BY Benazir Thaha Valencia, Sr. Planner 

DATE April 19, 2022 

FOR MONTH OF March 2022 

TOPIC #1 Development and Building Permits 

ISSUES: • Development Permits – 3

• Building Permits –  1

• Electrical Permits – 4

• Gas Permits – 1

• Plumbing Permits – 2

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Permitted Development Permits included:

• 1 Permitted Change of Use (eating & drinking minor;

• 1 Stripping & Grading (preparation for residential
construction)

• 1 Semi-Detached Dwelling

• Building Permit issued Residential renovations

• Electrical & Gas Permits issued for a variety of residential projects.

TOPIC #2 Real Property Reports (RPRs) 

ISSUES: • RPRs - 4

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • RPRs are submitted with a request for a Stamp of Compliance to
facilitate the sale of the property.  The role of Administration is to
assist property owners to solve non-compliant issues.

TOPIC #3 Area Structure Plans (ASP) 

ISSUES: • Internal review of two (2) Area Structure Plans ongoing for NW
quarter sections (Mountain Spring and Sundre Hills)

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Mountain Spring: Planning and Engineering comments will be
shared with Developer’s Consultants providing opportunity to
amend the ASP for Mountain Spring before formal external
circulation and first reading of bylaw;

• Sundre Hills: Planning and Engineering comments will be shared
with Developer’s Consultant before first reading and public hearing

TOPIC #4: Re-designations (amendments to the Land Use Bylaw Map) 

ISSUES: • 0 re-designation applications received in February 2022

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • 0 Public Hearings were scheduled.

Although no redesignation applications were received in February 2022, 
Administration is anticipating applications to come forward for 
development in the NW quarters. 

TOPIC #3: Subdivision 

ISSUES: • 0 subdivision applications were received and processed:

9.1c
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RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Although no subdivision applications were received in March 2022,
Administration is tracking the Developer’s progress to meet
conditions of 2019 subdivision approvals and anticipates
applications will be forthcoming in 2022 for development in the NW
quarters.

TOPIC #5: Land Use Bylaw 

ISSUES: • No Public Hearings were scheduled.

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Administration is reviewing the Land Use Bylaw and
“housekeeping” amendments may be forthcoming.

TOPIC #6 Municipal Development Plan (MDP) 

ISSUES: • The Town’s Municipal Plan was drafted and approved by Council in
2013.

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Administration is reviewing the MDP. Amendments to the MDP, if
proposed, will require public consultation, circulation to
developers, internal departments, and external agencies for
comment.

TOPIC # 8: Administrative 

ISSUES: • Filing Project – ongoing.

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Improved departmental efficiencies, knowledge, and team building.

• Improves overall departmental performance, transparency, and
stakeholder engagement.

• Succession planning underway to build capacity within the
department.

Attachments March 2022 Building Permit Statistics 

CAO’s Development Permit Report 
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Mar. 2022 2022 Year To Date 2021 Year to Date

Dwelling No. of Building Dwelling No. of Building Dwelling No. of Building

Units Permits Value Units Permits Value Units Permits Value

RESIDENTIAL

Two-Storey 0 0 -$   0 0 0

Bungalows 0 0 -$   1 0 -$   0 0 -$   

Bi-Level 0 0 -$   0 0 0

0 0 -$   0 0 -$   

Duplex/Semi Det. 0 0 -$   0 0 0
Multi-Family 0 0 -$   0 0 0
Mobile Homes 0 0 -$   0 0 -$   
Accessory Buildings 0 0 -$   1 7000
Renovation/Addition 1 15,000$   0 2 27,000$   0 5 46,500$   

0

Sub-Total 0 1 15,000$   0 2 27,000$   0 6 53,500$   

No. of Building No. of Building No. of Building
COMMERCIAL Permits Value Permits Value Permits Value
Building Starts 0 -$   0 -$   
Renovation/Addition 0 -$   0 -$   3 284,619$   

0 -$   0 -$   3 284,619$   

No. of Building No. of Building No. of Building
INDUSTRIAL Permits Value Permits Value Permits Value
Building Starts 0 -$   0 -$   0 0
Renovation/Addition 0 -$   0 -$   0 -$   

0 -$   0 -$   0 -$   

0

No. of Building No. of Building No. of Building
INSTITUTIONAL Permits Value Permits Value Permits Value
Building Starts 0 -$   0 -$   0 -$   
Renovation/Addition 0 -$   0 -$   1 18,575$   

0 -$   0 -$   1 18,575$   

TOTAL Dwelling No. of Building Dwelling No. of Building

Units Permits Value Units Permits Value

0 1 15,000$   0 2 27,000$   0 10 356,694$   

MONTHLY BUILDING REPORT

FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2022
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MEMO 

TO: Linda Nelson, CAO 

FROM: Betty Ann Fountain, Sr. Development Officer 

RE: March 2022 Commercial, Industrial, Institutional Projects 

COMMERCIAL 
Development / 
Building Permit 

District Civic Address Project Value 

Change of Use C-1 206 Centre St. N Kokum’s Cree-ations 
(eating & drinking 
minor – take out) 

n/a 

Legend: 
C-1 Central Commercial
C-2 Highway Commercial
C-3 Neighbourhood Commercial
I-1 Light Industrial
I-2 Flood Plain Industrial
PS Public Service

Value: n/a = no building permit required 
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 

DEPARTMENT Operations 

SUBMITTED BY Jim Hall 

DATE April 20, 2022 

FOR MONTH OF March 2022 

TOPIC #1 Wastewater Infiltration 

Progress A large groundwater infiltration leak was found in 2022. Due to the 
complexity and heavy groundwater the repair was cancelled twice. 
With favorable seasonal conditions the repair was made. Additionally, 
the campground had a similar issue with the sewer main. Repair of 
these has decreased 500 cm/day from the wastewater treatment 
process 

Action Ops will continue to monitor, and survey/risk assess the system 

TOPIC #2 Treated water leaks 

Progress Three confirmed leaks have been found and repaired. These repairs at 
Willow Crescent NE, Greenwood campground and a private water 
service have equated to a reduction from 2000 m3/day to 1250 m3/day 
average. 

Next Steps The survey has revealed other suspect areas but require more 
investigation 
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TOPIC # 3: Gas Metering 

Progress The gas department has continued with changeouts per Measurement 
Canada. Some additional 2023 meters may be changed out to reduce 
the 350 required in that year.   

Next Steps The department has increased change outs to 10+/day 

TOPIC # 4: Fibre Optic construction 

Progress  Crosscut is still completing sections of town. Clean up and remediation 
will take place once spring arrives and conditions dry 

Next Steps There have been resident concerns for remediation. Crosscut has 
indicated it is a high priority  

TOPIC # 5: Town Shop 

Progress Staff have moved into respective offices with repairs all complete. 

Next Steps 

TOPIC # 6: Street Signage 

Progress An inventory of town signs damaged/faded has been completed to plan 
for repairs and /or replacement. Pedestrian crossing signage has been 
added to the 7th Street SW trail crossing  

Next Steps A shop inventory of stored signage is underway. 
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 

DEPARTMENT Community Services 

SUBMITTED BY Sue Nelson 

DATE April 20, 2022 

FOR MONTH OF March 2022 

TOPIC #1 Arena 

ISSUES: 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • March was a busy month with Minor Hockey playoffs games;

• Appreciation to all the staff for their efforts in preparation of
the U13 Provincials;

• March 31 – April 3 Minor Hockey hosted the U13 provincials.
Kudo’s to the organizing committee, teams who participated,
parents, and Sundre residents for supporting youth events at
the arena;

• Rec Hockey ended the season having games against their
parents;

• The figure skating club ended their season with  “Show-off Day”
Kudo’s to the organizers, participants, family members and
Sundre residents who attended;

• Staff completed a “face-lift” to the front area of the arena;

• April 4th, the 2022 season shut down commenced;

• Overall the Arena had a great season!

TOPIC #2 Community Services 

ISSUES: 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • A busy month in the Community Centre with seasons ending for
Taekwondo and Gymnastics. Plus, Indoor Pickle Ball, Indoor
Walking Group, a few private rentals and Sundre Minor Ball;

• Sundre will not complete in the annual Community in Bloom
event. The committee will prepare a plan for participation in
2023;

• Staff attended a CPTED (crime prevention through
environmental design) presentation hosted by Planning &
Development;

• March 24th staff assisted with the set-up for Council’s open
house and were on hand to provide information to the electors
who attended;

• March 30th  a walk-through with contractors in regard to the
gym floor. Report forthcoming.

9.1e
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 

DEPARTMENT Fire Department 

SUBMITTED BY Ross Clews Fire Chief 

DATE April 20, 2022 

FOR MONTH OF March 2022 

911 DISPATCHES: 
Emergency Response Numbers, 95 Total Year to Date  
MARCH 2022, Responses - 23 Total 

Response Types: ➢ Medical Assist - 6
➢ Alarms - 5
➢ Structure Fire - 1
➢ Motor Vehicle Collisions - 3
➢ Back Country rescue - 1
➢ Motor Vehicle fire – 1
➢ Outside/vegetation fire - 6

Results: ➢ All incidents Responded, Managed and Resolved by SFD
Members

TRAINING: 
In-Hall/Weekly: ➢ Vehicle Extrication Hands on Training

➢ Portable Pump Drafting and Relay Pumping
➢ Structure Search and Rescue Carries/Victim Removal
➢ Donated house Practical Evolutions
➢ New-Recruit Training NFPA 1001 level I

Practical training; hydrocarbon Fires/Dry Chem extinguisher,
Ladders, Ventilation, Escape Practical Techniques 

Formal Courses in-
Progress/Upcoming: 

➢ Ice Rescue - 6 Members Completed
➢ NFPA 1041 Level I - 4 Members Online Course in Progress
➢ NFPA 1041 Level II - 2 Member Online Course in Progress
➢ Safety Codes Fire Inspector Level A – 3 Members Online in

Progress 75% Completed
➢ Wildland Urban Interface - April/May TBD
➢ NFPA 1002 Differed till Fall Date TBD
➢ NFPA 1051 Course Dates April 22-24
➢ Farm Extrication & Machinery Entrapment Rescue Symposium

4 Members June 3-5th

Fire Hall: 
AHS/E-Sim Lab: ➢ Construction 90% Complete - Hospitals Futures Foundation NTR

Building/Maintenance: ➢ EMS Side Furnace repair and quote new other options

SFD Units - Equipment 
Units: ➢ Unit 520 Pumper Alternator replaced due to failure
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➢ Unit 520 Pumper Foam Deployment Issue Repaired
➢ Unit 560 transmission and light/siren failure, Repaired, out of

service 1 week
➢ Annual Pumper Service and Testing Booked for May 10

Equipment; ➢ 3 Sets of Bunker gear to be ordered 4-Month Delivery

Safety Codes: 
Inspections -Occupancies ➢ Fire Inspections scheduled on Request – Complaint Basis

➢ Behind schedule currently

Status: ➢ 3 Members - training to become Safety Codes Officers
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORT 

DEPARTMENT Economic Development and Communications 

SUBMITTED BY Jonathan Allan 

DATE April 20, 2022 

FOR MONTH OF March 2022 

TOPIC #1 Community Development, Business Development and Vacancy Rates 

ISSUES: • VACANCY RATES
o March vacancy rate was estimated at 5.1% as a proportion

of square footage available in the C1 district downtown.
o Residential vacancies in buildings with 4+ units are still

estimated to be ~1%.
o Industrial building vacancies are estimated to be <1%.

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Attended various meetings in regard to potential new businesses,
plan for existing business to expand, and a potential new cultural
business;

• Assisting with Campus Alberta Central promotion of  the Health
Care Aide program.

TOPIC #2 Tourism Development 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Promotion of Explore Sundre tourism advertising campaign
ongoing;

• Hosted, along with volunteers, a booth at the Calgary Outdoor
Adventure and Travel Show and a stage presentation in regard to
Sundre;

• Continue to work with Shady Grove Bluegrass Fest organizers,
assisting in promotion and sponsorship for their event.

TOPIC # 3: Broadband Fibre Optic Development 

ISSUES: N/A 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Xplornet Communications fibre optic deployment ongoing.

TOPIC # 4: Other Projects 

ISSUES: N/A 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Continued work on pathway lighting project.

TOPIC # 5: Committees, Meetings, Conferences and Professional Development 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Attended various Ec. Dev. meetings including: interagency meeting,
CAEP meeting in Three Hills, Chamber of Commerce, new Olds EDO.
Communities in Bloom committee and Travel Alberta meeting in
Red Deer.

TOPIC # 6: Communications 

RESOLUTIONS/SUCCESSES: • Updated website(s) as necessary.

Attachments • N/A
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COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING REPORT 
FROM THE DESK OF MAYOR RICHARD WARNOCK 

717 Main Avenue West | P.O. Box 420 | Sundre, Alberta, Canada T0M 1X0 | T. 403.638.3551 | F. 
403.638.2100 | E. townmail@sundre.com 

Intermunicipal Collaboration Committee 
Date of Meeting:   

No meeting in March 

Mountain View Senior’s Housing 
Date of Meeting:  March 24, 2022 

Regular Board – MVSH Olds.   Presentation by the Auditors and financial overview ending 2021 
year. Discussions were held on the Pandemic Plan, the first-year anniversary of the 
MVSH/Bethany Care Society partnership, the Alberta 10 year affordable housing strategy and 
MVSH Advocacy for support of long-standing issues affecting low income seniors. 

Mountain View Regional Waste Management Committee 
Date of Meeting:   

No meeting in March 

Intermunicipal Planning Commission 
Date of Meeting:   

No meeting in March 

Red Deer River Municipal Users Group 
Date of Meeting:  March 17, 2022 

Regular meeting – Drumheller. – The main agenda items were the review of the RDRMUG Crown 
Reservation water allowances, hosting Regional Workshops to promote MUG, the Water Shed 
Alliance update and a future RDRMUG Action Plan.  

Next meeting will be held May 19, 2022 

Red Deer River Watershed Alliance 
Date of Meeting: 

No meeting in March 

Sundre Forest Products 
Date of Meeting:  March 23, 2022 

The Sundre Forest Products meeting was held at the HUB in Caroline. 
Agenda Items included Sundre site news, Strachen site news, Planning overview, Operations 
overview and a Silviculture report.   

This meeting was very informative on the work being done by West Fraser on the intentions of 
maintaining full operations of both facilities this year 
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Sundre Petroleum Operators Group 
Date of Meeting:  February 23, 2022 

No meeting in March. 

Coordinated Community Response 
Date of Meeting:   

No meeting in March 

Sundre Wellness Advocacy Committee 
Date of Meeting:  March 14, 2022 

Postponed to April. 

Other:   
Date of Meeting: March Meetings 

March 9/10 - Attended the Alberta Municipalities Leadership Caucus in Edmonton. Information 
sessions I participated in were the Alberta Municipal Affairs/ABMunis discussions on future 
alignments of Municipalities in Alberta, and the Alberta EMS report on the 10 year plan for service 
delivery of Ambulance services in Alberta. 

March 14 – Regular Council Meeting – Agenda and Minutes on Town of Sundre Web Page 

March 14 – Mayor’s of South Central Alberta meeting held in Sundre Council chambers. 

March 15 – Central Mayor’s and Reeve’s meeting held in Red Deer – Penhold will assume the 
host role for 2022 so that these general information meetings can continue. 

March 18 – Attended by zoom the Alberta Environment & Parks webinar on the Extended 
Producer Responsibility program being implemented in Alberta for recycling. 

March 24 – Sundre held the Levels of Service open house at the community centre to receive 
comments and information from residents as a means to consider resident feedback in preparing 
the next 4 year budget. 

March 28 – Regular Council Meeting – Agenda and Minutes on Town of Sundre Web Page. 
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COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING REPORT 
FROM THE DESK OF COUNCILLOR JAIME MARR 

717 Main Avenue West | P.O. Box 420 | Sundre, Alberta, Canada T0M 1X0 | T. 403.638.3551 | F. 403.638.2100 | E. townmail@sundre.com 

Communities in Bloom Committee 
Date of Meeting: March 23, 2022 

Attended a meeting in the Community Centre board room to discuss the 2022 Communities in 
Bloom (CIB) application. Members discussed volunteer numbers and town construction due to 
underground fibre optic installation.  

Members felt it was important to note that while a decision to NOT move forward in a formal CIB 
application, the committee was going to focus on the following: 
- volunteer recruitment
- marketing
- budgets
- business frontages
- charging stations
- historical signage
- deer resistant / drought resistant plants
- working with community services and maintenance standards
- cultural events

They look forward to providing updates to council and are eager to use this year to accomplish all 
the suggestions outlined in the CIB report and showcase our community again in 2023. 

Events and Festivals Committee 
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

FCSS (Greenwood Neighbourhood Place) Board (ALTERNATE) 
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

Grant Review Committee  
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

No meeting in March. 

No meeting in March. 

Nothing to report. 

11.2

137



Sundre Municipal Library Board (TRUSTEE) 
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

Sundre & District Aquatic Society 
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

Sundre & District Historical Society (ALTERNATE) 
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

Sundre Petroleum Operators Group 
Date of Meeting:  TBD 

Other 
Date of Meeting:  See below 

Nothing to report. 

No meeting in March. 

Nothing to report. 

No meeting in March 

March 14, 2022 – Regular council meeting (Agenda & Minutes on Town Website) 

March 24, 2022 – Levels of Service Open House, Sundre Community Centre: 3pm – 6pm 

March 28, 2022 – Regular council meeting (Agenda & Minutes on Town Website) 

138



COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING REPORT 
FROM THE DESK OF COUNCILLOR OWEN PETERSEN 

717 Main Avenue West | P.O. Box 420 | Sundre, Alberta, Canada T0M 1X0 | T. 403.638.3551 | F. 403.638.2100 | E. townmail@sundre.com 

Sundre Search and Rescue 
Date of Meeting:  March 22 

Sundre & District Historical Society 
Date of Meeting:  March 15 

Other: March 21, Attended alongside all of council the Emergency Management Committee 

meeting.  

-SAR met after a slow winter with the last call out being Oct 2021

-Covid restrictions slowed training so there will be a lot going on this year including ATV training,

Team lead training, and more. Two of the local RCMP were present and are keep to take part in

some of the SAR training

-finances seem to be in good shape despite lower-than-normal casino revenue

-Reviewed the successful Winterfest activities

-discussed the lifting of covid restrictions. The museum will continue to supply hand sanitizer and

masks to those who want them.

-discussed a needed website update

-upcoming date of importance:

-grounds clean up April 30 and/or May 7th

-May Long weekend

11.3

139



Mar-22

Councillor Paul Isaac

Council Committee's :

Sundre School Liasion - No meeting was planned

Sundre & District Chamber of Commerce - As an alternate I have not yet attended

Sundre Municipal Library Board - As an alternate I have not yet attended

1 - Tuesday & Wednesday March 9 & 10, 2022 - Attended the Municipal Leadership Caucus in Edmonton 

with Mayor Warnock.

Minister of Municipal Affairs - Ric McIver opened the Conference with announcing the reduction in

mandates in moving away from COVID.  That the Government is looking at the MGA Act with very minor

changes are incurring but basically leaving it alone.  He stated that the Provincial budget will be a 

balanced budget this year.  MSI funding for Municipalities is in place for 3 more years but it is at a 25%

reduction.  Then moving towards the new program LGFF - Local Government Fiscal Framework.  He also

spoke about the NEW red tape reduction.  

Minister's Session 1. McIvor & Nixon & Heath Minister & ?  /  By 2024 there will be 25 Million available 

for water projects.  Health has input 3.5 Million to help with infrastructure going forward.  

Minister's Session 2 - McIver & Glubush & Senior's Houseing & Community Social Services & Shandro  /  

There is a shortage of Crown Prosecutors.  We are happy with our policing today, but changes are

coming.  Revenue sharing from Canabas - No answer.  More $ is coming down the road for 

Municipalities which could benefit the DEN in Sundre.  

Education & Engagement Session 1 - Alberta Provincial Police Service "APP"  This Act defines how 

policing in Alberta is handled in Alberta today under the "PPSA" Police Provincial Service Agreement

Current cost's of RCMP policing in Alberta is 672 Million a 2020 stat. The adjusted current model - 783 M.

Transition cost - 366 M.  

Education & Engagement Session 3 - Municipal Financial Health and LGFF - Local Government Fiscal

Framework.  This will be a new system on helping Municipalities.  We will always know what amount 

we will be receiving 2 years in advance.  The LGFF is only for Capital & infrastructure projects.  Right 

now they were looking for feedback is this new formular is a correct breakdown for helping each

Municipalities with their funding for them to be sustainable.  

Premier Kenny spoke.

It was a conference where ideas and projected new concepts where shared with those Municipalities

which where present.  Also lots of discussion regarding the 2 options regading Policing in our Province

The Government has also put together a group of people to research Goverence in our Province.  Some

real questions around this research and what the Province might do with this.
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 1 - Monday March 14, 2022 at 6:00 pm - Council Meeting in Town Chambers.

2. Monday March 21, 2022 at 6:00 pm - Emergency Management Committee in Town Chambers.

141



COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING REPORT 
FROM THE DESK OF COUNCILLOR CONNIE ANDERSON 

717 Main Avenue West | P.O. Box 420 | Sundre, Alberta, Canada T0M 1X0 | T. 403.638.3551 | F. 403.638.2100 | E. townmail@sundre.com 

Chamber of Commerce 
Date of Meeting:   

No meeting in March 

Sundre Wellness Advocacy Committee 
Date of Meeting:  

Postponed to April 

Intermunicipal Planning Commission 
Date of Meeting: 

No Meeting in March 

Other 
Date of Meeting: 

March 14 – Regular Council Meeting – Agenda and Minutes on Town of Sundre Web Page 

March 24 – Sundre held the Levels of Service open house at the community centre to receive 
comments and information from residents as a means to consider resident feedback in preparing 
the next 4 year budget. 

March 28 – Regular Council Meeting – Agenda and Minutes on Town of Sundre Web Page. 
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